(a)

(b)

/——*f’-—x
Huntingdonshire

DISTRICT COUNCIL

A meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE will
be held in THE CIVIC SUITE (LANCASTER/STIRLING ROOMS),
PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON, PE29
3TN on MONDAY, 18 NOVEMBER 2024 at 7:00 PM and you are
requested to attend for the transaction of the following business:-

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY CHANGE

APOLOGIES
MINUTES (Pages 5 - 8)

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 21st October
2024.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

To receive from Members declarations as to disclosable pecuniary, other
registerable and non-registerable interests in relation to any Agenda item. See
Notes below.

APPLICATIONS REQUIRING REFERENCE TO DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

To consider reports by the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management).

Chesterton - 24/01323/FUL (Pages 9 - 28)

Proposed change of use of land to residential curtilage and erection of a detached
self-build residential annexe - Land North of Abbots House, Priory Gardens,
Chesterton.

Chesterton - 24/00694/FUL (Pages 29 - 48)

Proposed change of use of land to residential curtiiage and erection of a

greenhouse dome (retrospective)- Land, North of Abbots House, Priory Gardens,
Chesterton.



(c)

Huntingdon - 24/00021/FUL (Pages 49 - 70)

Retrospective conversion of existing warehouse into an ancillary meat packing
facility and associated works - 16 Latham Road, Huntingdon, PE29 6YE.

APPEAL DECISIONS (Pages 71 - 72)

To consider a report by the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management).

LATE REPRESENTATIONS

7 day of November 2024
Michelle Sacks

Chief Executive and Head of Paid
Service

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and other Registrable and Non-Registrable
Interests

Further information on Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and other Registerable and
Non-Regqisterable Interests is available in the Council’'s Constitution

Filming, Photography and Recording at Council Meetings

This meeting will be filmed for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the Council’s
YouTube site. The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except where there are
confidential or exempt items. If you make a representation to the meeting you will
be deemed to have consented to being filmed. By entering the meeting you are
also consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound
recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. If you have any queries
regarding the streaming of Council meetings, please contact Democratic Services
on 01480 388169.

The District Council also permits filming, recording and the taking of photographs
at its meetings that are open to the public. Arrangements for these activities
should operate in accordance with guidelines agreed by the Council.

Please contact Anthony Roberts, Democratic Services, Tel: 01480 388015 /
email Anthony.Roberts@huntingdonshire.gov.uk if you have a general query
on any Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for absence from the
meeting, or would like information on any decision taken by the Committee.

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards
the Contact Officer.

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except
during consideration of confidential or exempt items of business.



https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/3744/constitution.pdf
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/3744/constitution.pdf
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/1365/filming-photography-and-recording-at-council-meetings.pdf

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website.

Emergency Procedure

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest
emergency exit.



http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

This page is intentionally left blank



22

23

24

Agenda ltem 1

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
held in THE CIVIC SUITE (LANCASTER/STIRLING ROOMS), PATHFINDER
HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON, PE29 3TN on Monday, 21st
October 2024

PRESENT: Councillor D L Mickelburgh — Chair.
Councillors R J Brereton, E R Butler, S J Corney,

K P Gulson, P AJordan, S Mokbul, J Neish, B M Pitt,
T D Sanderson, R A Slade and C H Tevlin.

APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were submitted on
behalf of Councillors J Clarke, D B Dew, S R McAdam and
S Wakeford.

MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 16th September 2024 were
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

Councillor J Neish declared a Non-Registrable Interest in Minute No 24 (a) by
virtue of the fact that the application related to the Ward he represented.

APPLICATIONS REQUIRING REFERENCE TO DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Planning Service Manager (Development Management) submitted reports
(copies of which are appended in the Minute Book) on applications for
development to be determined by the Committee. Members were advised of
further representations, which had been received since the reports had been
prepared. Whereupon, it was

RESOLVED

Erection of 3-bedroom bungalow with associated parking including new
fencing — 17 High Street, Bluntisham, Huntingdon - 24/00567/FUL

(Councillor P Hope, Bluntisham Parish Council, and L Bevans, agent, addressed
the Committee on the application).

See Minute No 24 for Members’ interests.
that the application be refused for the following reasons:

a) The proposal would result in a development that by virtue of its design and
location, would result in the introduction of a tandem form of development that is

Page 5 of 72



b)

out of keeping with the prevailing pattern and grain of development along this
part of the High Street and does not respect the character, appearance and form
of the Bluntisham Conservation Area. Whilst the identified harm is considered to
be less than substantial there would be no public benefits derived from the
provision of a single market dwelling to outweigh this harm. As such, the
proposal is considered to be contrary to Section 72 of the Planning (Listed
Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, Policies LP9 part (c), LP11, LP12
and LP34 of the adopted Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 and Section 16 of
the National Planning Policy Framework in this regard. The proposal would
therefore have an unacceptable effect on the character of the immediate locality
and the settlement as a whole, contrary to criterion (c) of Policy LP9
Huntingdonshire Local Plan. Subsequently, the principle of development is not
supported.

b) The application is not supported by a legal agreement to secure offsite
biodiversity net gain contrary to the objectives of Policy LP30 of
Huntingdonshire's Local Plan and Section 15 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
inserted by Schedule 14 of the Environment Act 2021) in this regard.

Change of use of agricultural land (Use Class B) to garden land (Use Class
C3) and erection of side shelter (part retrospective) — Spillers Yard, Raunds
Road, Keyston - 24/00686/FUL

(Councillor A Ford, Bythorn and Keyston Parish Council, Councillor J Gray, Ward
Member, and R Keeling, applicant addressed the Committee on the application).

that, contrary to the recommendation, the application be approved subject to
conditions to be determined by the Planning Services Manager (Development
Management) to include conditions relating to time, drawings, removal of all
Permitted Development Rights, Arboricultural and Tree Protection Plan, hard and
soft landscaping and biodiversity enhancements.

At 8.30 pm the meeting was adjourned.
At 8.34 pm the meeting resumed.

Erection of a new single family dwelling with associated landscaping — 2
Blacksmiths Lane, Abbotsley, St Neots - 24/00742/FUL

(C Burd, agent, addressed the Committee on the application).
that the application be refused for the following reasons:

a) The proposed scale and massing of the dwelling would have an urbanising
influence on the setting of the Listed Building and would result in a significant
presence within the street scene. The development would considerably alter this
semi-rural and verdant historic space within Abbotsley Conservation Area as the
proposed dwelling would create a strident element within the original historic
curtilage of the Grade Il Listed Blacksmiths Cottage and Barn which would
detract from its setting and would cause harm to its significance within the
historic core of the village. The harm identified to the designated heritage assets
is significant but would be defined as less than substantial in accordance with
Paragraph 208 of the NPPF (2023) which requires this level of harm to be

Page 6 of 72



25

weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, where appropriate, securing
its optimum viable use. The level of harm caused to the designated heritage
assets would not be outweighed by the public benefits of this minor development
of one dwelling in this rural small settlement with limited sustainability benefits
and the proposal is therefore contrary to Policies LP2, LP9, LP11, LP12 parts a,
b & ¢, and LP34 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036, and paragraph 208
of the NPPF 2023.

The application is not accompanied by a completed Unilateral Undertaking for
the provision of wheeled bins and therefore fails to comply with part H of the
Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (2011) and Policy
LP4 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036.

APPEAL DECISIONS

The Committee received and noted a report by the Planning Service Manager
(Development Management), which contained details of four recent decisions by the
Planning Inspectorate. A copy of the report is appended in the Minute Book.

RESOLVED

that the contents of the report be noted.

Chair

Page 7 of 72



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3a

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

COMMITTEE 18" November 2024

Case No:  24/01323/FUL

Proposal: Proposed change of use of land to residential
curtilage and erection of a detached self-build

residential annexe.

Location: Land North of Abbots House, Priory Gardens,
Chesterton.

Applicant: Mr J Watt
Grid Ref: (E) 512799 (N) 295519
Date of Registration: 9" August 2024

Parish: Chesterton

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE

This application is referred to the Development Management
Committee (DMC) in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation, as
the recommendation of approval is contrary to that of the Parish
Council recommendation for refusal.

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

The application site is located to the northeast of Chesterton and
is surrounded by residential development to the south and east.
To the west of the application site are agricultural fields and to
the north and within the applicant's ownership is an area of
woodland.

1.1 The site is not within a Conservation Area but there are some
Listed Buildings in the vicinity (discussed in more detail in the
proceeding sections of this report). There are no Tree
Preservation Orders within or adjacent to the site which is also
within Flood Zone 1 as per the most recent Environment Agency
Flood Risk Maps and Data.

1.2  This application seeks permission to change the use of a section
of land which falls outside of the residential garden/curtilage of
the house approved under application reference 18/01689/FUL
(the erection of the dwelling) and to erect a single storey
residential annexe which would be ancillary to (and
recommended to be conditioned as such, in the event that
permission be granted) to the host dwelling.

Page 9 of 72



1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

The original permission (ref 18/01689/FUL) removed Permitted
Development (PD) rights detailed within the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order
2015 for Classes A (extensions), B (roof additions), C (other roof
alterations) and E (Buildings within the curtilage) for the dwelling
presently under construction.

Officers have scrutinised the plans and have familiarised
themselves with the site and surrounding area.

NATIONAL GUIDANCE

The National Planning Policy Framework (December 2023)
(NPPF 2023) sets out the three objectives — economic, social
and environmental — of the planning system to contribute to the
achievement of sustainable development. The NPPF 2023 at
paragraph 10 provides as follows: ‘So that sustainable
development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the
Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable
development (paragraph 11).’

The National Planning Policy Framework (December 2023)
(NPPF 2023) sets out the Government's planning policies for
(amongst other things):

delivering a sufficient supply of homes;

building a strong, competitive economy;

achieving well-designed, beautiful and safe places;
conserving and enhancing the natural, built and historic
environment

Planning Practice Guidance and the National Design Guide 2021
are also relevant and material considerations.

For full details visit the government website National Guidance

PLANNING POLICIES
Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 (Adopted 15th May 2019)

LP1: Amount of Development

LP2: Strategy for Development

LP4: Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery
LP5: Flood Risk

LP9: Small Settlements

LP10: The Countryside

LP11: Design Context

LP12: Design Implementation

LP14: Amenity

LP15: Surface Water

Page 10 of 72


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government

3.2

LP17: Parking Provision and Vehicle Movement
LP30: Biodiversity and Geodiversity

LP31: Trees, Woodland, Hedges and Hedgerows
LP34: Heritage Assets and their Settings

LP36: Air Quality

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) and Guidance:

Huntingdonshire Design Guide Supplementary Planning
Document (2017)

Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape SPD (2022)
Huntingdonshire Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (2017)
Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD (2017)

LDF Developer Contributions SPD (2011)

Annual Monitoring Review regarding housing land supply (2020)
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste Local
Plan (2021)

Local For full details visit the government website Local policies

4,

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.1

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

18/01689/FUL - The erection of a new family dwelling with
garaging and access (Permission)

21/80309/COND- Conditional Information for 18/01689/FUL: CA1
(Time Limit), C3 (Materials), C6 (Tree Protection), C8 (Levels),
C12 (Ecology) (Details Discharged)

22/00990/S73- Variation of condition 2 of permission -
18/01689/FUL Design Improvements (Refused)

22/02547/FUL- Erection of a detached single storey residential
annexe (Withdrawn)

23/01407/S73- Variation of condition 2 (plans) to 18/01689/FUL
to amend the design and materials of the approved dwelling and
garage (Permission)

24/00694/FUL — Proposed change of use of land to residential

curtilage and erection of a greenhouse dome (retrospective)
(Pending Consideration)

CONSULTATIONS

Chesterton Parish Council recommend refusal. Their comments
are available to view in full on HDC’s Public Access Site but
broadly relate to the following matters:

*Concerns regarding access to the site.
*Separation distance to the main house.

Page 11 of 72


https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

5.2

5.3

6.1

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

*Concerns that this will be developed into a separate dwelling.
*Plain appearance of the building.

*Concern that material details given were unclear.

*Impact on trees.

*Wheeled bin storage.

*Dwelling permitted under tilted balance.

*Site outside built-up area of village.

It should be noted that the above comments are a combination of
those submitted in relation to withdrawn application reference
22/02547/FUL, however, those received on the 06.09.24 (for this
application) detailed that the original objections remained valid
and that the Parish wished to combine the two.

Cambridgeshire County Council Highways Team —No objections
— further details in the proceeding sections of this report.

Tree Officer - No objection subject to a condition regarding a tree
protection plan.

REPRESENTATIONS

None received at the time of determination.

ASSESMENT

When determining planning applications, it is necessary to
establish what weight should be given to each plan’s policies in
order to come to a decision. The following legislation,
government policy and guidance outline how this should be
done.

As set out within the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004 (Section 38(6)) and the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 (Section 70(2)) in dealing with planning applications the
Local Planning Authority shall have regard to have provisions of
the development plan, so far as material to the application, and
to any other material considerations. This is reiterated within
paragraph 47 of the NPPF (2023). The development plan is
defined in Section 38(3)(b) of the 2004 Act as “the development
plan documents (taken as a whole) that have been adopted or
approved in that area”.

In Huntingdonshire the Development Plan consists of a number
of adopted neighbourhood plans, however, there is not an
adopted neighbourhood plan in place for Chesterton. Therefore,
in this case no neighbourhood plans are given weight in the
determination of this application.

The statutory term ‘material considerations’ has been broadly
construed to include any consideration relevant in the

Page 12 of 72



circumstances which bears on the use or development of the
land: Cala Homes (South) Ltd v Secretary of State for
Communities and Local Government & Anor [2011] EWHC 97
(Admin); [2011] 1 P. & C.R. 22, per Lindblom J. Whilst accepting
that the NPPF does not change the statutory status of the
Development Plan, paragraph 2 confirms that it is a material
consideration and significant weight is given to this in
determining applications.

7.5 The main issues to consider in the determination of this
application are:

e The principle of development (including impact upon the
countryside)

e Design and visual amenity

e Impact on heritage assets

¢ Residential amenity

e Flood risk

e Highway safety and parking provision

e Biodiversity

e Impacton Trees

The principle of the development including impact on the

countryside

7.6  The application site is located to the northeast of Chesterton.
The application seeks to extend the residential garden/curtilage
permitted with application ref 18/01689/FUL by changing the use
of the agricultural land and erecting an ancillary one-bedroom
annexe to the north-east of the approved dwelling. A site visit
reveals the greenhouse dome (subject to the separate
application ref 24/00694/FUL) to already be in place with the
annexe to be located in a linear alignment to the west of the
dome. Whilst not defined by boundary treatments (at the time of
the visit) the land appears to have been cleared and it is not
characteristic of its previous agricultural land use. There was
paraphernalia associated with the ongoing construction (of the
approved dwelling) and signs of domesticity.

7.7  Chesterton is defined as a Small Settlement under Policy LP9 of
the Local Plan to 2036 and this is therefore the starting point for
assessment.

7.8 Policy LP9 states that a proposal that is located within a built-up

area of a Small Settlement will be supported where the amount
and location of development proposed is sustainable in relation
to the:

a. level of service and infrastructure provision within the
settlement;

Page 13 of 72



7.9

7.10

b. opportunities for users of the proposed development to access
everyday services and facilities by sustainable modes of travel
including walking, cycling and public transport;

c. effect on the character of the immediate locality and the
settlement as a whole.

The built-up area is defined in the Local Plan as a distinct group
of buildings that includes 30 or more homes. Land which relates
more to the group of buildings rather than to the surrounding
countryside is also considered to form part of the built-up area.

In this case, the site was formerly associated with the residential
curtilage of Abbotts House and hosted a tennis court with fencing
and ancillary buildings prior to the erection of the dwelling.
Guidance within Local Plan paragraph 4.8 (built-up areas
definition) states the grounds that relate closely to the buildings,
for instance formal gardens, ancillary parking and hard tennis
courts would be considered within the built-up area. However, in
this instance north of the permitted dwelling and its residential
curtilage, the application site comprises an area of rough grass,
trees, some domesticity and the dome greenhouse. Guidance in
paragraph 4.85 states that agricultural land, woodland, meadow
where the character of the land primarily relates to the
countryside is excluded from the built-up area. Subsequently the
application site is not considered to be within or well related to
the settlement of Chesterton and therefore located in the
countryside. As such, Policy LP10 of the Local Plan (The
Countryside) is considered relevant in establishing the principle.

Policy LP10 of the Local Plan states that development in the
countryside will be restricted to the limited and specific
opportunities as provided for in other policies of this plan and that
all development in the countryside must:

a. seek to use land of lower agricultural value in preference to
land of higher agricultural value:

i. avoiding the irreversible loss of the best and most versatile
agricultural land (Grade 1 to 3a) where possible, and

ii. avoiding Grade 1 agricultural land unless there are exceptional
circumstances where the benefits of the proposal significantly
outweigh the loss of land;

b. recognise the intrinsic character and beauty of the
countryside; and

c. not give rise to noise, odour, obtrusive light or other impacts

that would adversely affect the use and enjoyment of the
countryside by others.

Page 14 of 72



7.1

712

713

7.14

In terms of part a of LP10, the land in question is classed as
Grade 3 agricultural land (as is the majority of the surrounding
land on which the residential development forming this section of
Chesterton is located) and this proposal would involve bringing

it into the residential garden/curtilage. Whilst this would result in
the loss of the land, aside from the land occupied by the annexe
it cannot reasonably be considered to be an irreversible loss.
Further, should Members choose to support the application, a
condition limiting permitted development rights (in relation to
additional structures) is recommended to be added to the
permission. The condition and current status of the land (as
described in the preceding sections of this report) should also be
considered. Overall, it is not considered that the proposal would
result in a level of harm which would justify a refusal based upon
part a) of LP10.

In regard to part b of LP10, the site is located within the Northern
Wolds character area as identified in the Huntingdonshire
Landscape and Townscape SPD (2022). Development in the
Northern Wolds should protect and enhance the distinctive
characters of the valley and plateau landscapes through
maintenance of field patterns and long-distance views from the
upland areas and protection of ancient hedgerows and oak trees
within the valleys. In this respect, it must be acknowledged that
extremely limited views of the site are afforded from any publicly
accessible land. There are no rights of way for example and
boundary treatments formed of trees/hedgerow to the north of the
site. The proposed building would be small in scale, (being single
storey only), is of a scale proportionate to the main dwelling and
surroundings and would be read within the setting of the
surrounding buildings and appear subservient to them. As
detailed in the preceding sections of this report, the land in
question already has a domestic character and does not appear
openly characteristic of the surrounding countryside. Should
Members choose to support the proposal, a condition is
recommended to be attached to the permission to secure the
building as ancillary to the host dwelling in order to prevent
improper independent use which could prove contrary to part b.

In terms of part c), it is not considered that the change of use of
the land which is relatively minor in relation to the extent of the
wider plot or the provision of a one-bedroom ancillary annexe to
the main dwelling would give rise to any of the factors detailed in
part c of LP10.

Overall, having regard to the above assessment, subject to
Conditions, the development is not considered to be harmful to
the character or appearance of the area. It therefore accords with
Policy LP10 of the Local Plan to 2036 and is therefore
acceptable in principle subject to compliance with other material

Page 15 of 72



planning considerations and conditions.

Design and visual amenity

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

Whilst the change of use of the land has the potential to impact
the character of the area, as discussed above, the overall
impacts of this are considered to be minimal and can be
controlled by condition. Therefore, an assessment of the built
development (the annexe) is the main focus in this respect.

The annexe is a single storey ‘L-shaped’ building providing one
bedroom, bathroom and combined living/dining and kitchen area
and the applicant has confirmed that it is intended for use by his
mother. It is located approx. 20 metres north-east of the man
dwelling and has a footprint of approx. 41m? It has a dual
pitched roof with overall height of approx. 3.3 metres. The
concerns of the Parish Council (in relation to the separation from
the main dwelling) are noted, however, whilst it is approx. 21
metres away it is linked by a path and, given the scale of the land
under the applicant’'s ownership this is not considered wholly
irregular. Further, the protection via the ancillary use condition
should help prevent any improper use. It should also be noted
that these comments related to the original application but the
revised comments fail to acknowledge this change.

In terms of material finish, the Parish Council raise concerns
regarding the use of render and a ‘white building’. However, the
render proposed ‘Traffic White’ is in fact cream in colour as
opposed to brilliant white and would contrast well with the other
external materials and glazing. Similar materials were approved
for the dwelling (21/80309/COND) and so these are not out of
character with the site and surroundings. Further, given the scale
and location of the building the impact on the wider surroundings
would be neutral.

In terms of use, it is acknowledged that there are concerns
regarding this and opportunities for the annexe to be used as a
separate unit. It is accepted that this would be a completely
different assessment and would have the potential to negatively
impact the character of the area. As discussed previously, in the
event that Members choose to support the application a
condition is recommended to be imposed to secure the annexe
as ancillary accommodation meaning that it should always
remain linked to the residential use of the dwelling and cannot be
separately let or disposed of or used for any commercial
enterprise. A condition limiting permitted development rights (in
terms of further outbuildings on the land) would also afford
further protection. A condition regarding boundary treatment is
also recommended.

Overall, subject to conditions the development is considered to
be acceptable in terms of design and visual amenity and

Page 16 of 72



therefore accords with Policies LP11 and LP12 of the Local Plan
to 2036 in this regard.

Impact upon heritage assets

7.20

7.21

As detailed in the preceding sections of this report, whilst the site
is not within a Conservation Area it is within the setting of some
Listed Buildings namely the Grade |l Listed Stable House and
The Priory and Grade | Listed St Michaels Church.

Section 66 of the Planning (LBCA) Act 1990 states that in
considering whether to grant planning permission for
development which affects a listed building or its setting, the local
planning authority shall have special regard to the desirability of
preserving the building or its setting or any features of special
architectural or historic interest which it possesses.

Para. 205 of the NPPF sets out that "When considering the
impact of a proposed development on the significance of a
designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the
asset's conservation (and the more important the asset, the
greater the weight should be). This is irrespective of whether any
potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less
than substantial harm to its significance'.

Para. 206 states that 'Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of
a designated heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or
from development within its setting), should require clear and
convincing justification'

Local Plan policy LP34 aligns with the statutory provisions and
NPPF advice.

In this case, the Grade Il Listed Buildings are in excess of 80
metres away and the Grade | Listed 150 metres. Therefore, given
the scale of the proposed building, the secluded nature of the site
and this separation, there is considered to be no impact on the
setting or significance of nearby designated heritage assets and
the development therefore accords with Policy LP34 of the Local
Plan to 2036 in this regard.

Residential Amenity

7.22 Policy LP14 of the Local Plan to 2036 states that “a proposal will

be supported where a high standard of amenity is provided for all
users and occupiers of the proposed development and
maintained for users and occupiers of neighbouring land and
buildings.” In this case, given the scale and location of the
annexe and the separation to adjacent dwellings and land there

Page 17 of 72



7.23

7.24

are considered to be no concerns with regard to overbearing
impacts, overshadowing, loss of light, overlooking or loss of
privacy.

In terms of the future occupants of the annexe, there is natural
light to all habitable rooms and good connectivity with the main
house. Officers note that the Parish Council has raised concerns
with the storage of wheeled bins. However, whilst storage for
bins is suggested in the submitted Design and Access
Statement, as an annexe this is parasitical to the main dwelling
and therefore will not be expected to have separate provision for
such matters.

Overall, the development is (subject to conditions) considered to
be compliant with Policy LP14 of the Local Plan to 2036.

Flood risk

7.25

The site is located within Flood Zone 1 and classed as minor
development as per the NPPF (2023). Development of this
nature is acceptable in Flood Zone 1 and no further justification
in terms of flood risk is required. In terms of surface water, it is
not considered that a development at the scale proposed on land
to which there is currently no control would result in significant
harm (particularly given the permeability of the surrounding land).
Overall, the development is acceptable in terms of its approach
to flood risk and surface water and therefore accords with
Policies LP5 and LP15 of the Local Plan to 2036.

Highway safety

7.26

7.27

There is no change to the way that vehicles enter or leave the
site and it is not considered that the increased scale of the site
and provision of an ancillary annexe would result in a level of
intensification which would render it harmful. The Parish Council
have raised concerns about the suitability of the access for one
dwelling (dating back to the earlier approval) thus resulting in
harmful intensification. Officers rely on specialists for advice on
such matters and, in this case, Cambridgeshire County Council
as the Local Highways Authority have been consulted. Having
reviewed the submitted detail they raise no objections observing
that whilst no details of the dimensions or visibility of the access
have been provided the access has previously been deemed
acceptable for a single dwelling (and any use above that would
not be supported), in this case the annexe is ancillary to the host
dwelling (and can be secured by condition) and on this basis
they raise no objections.

Overall, on the basis of the above assessment alongside the
advice of specialists, the development is considered to be
acceptable in terms of its impact on highway safety and therefore
accords with Policy LP17 of the Local Plan to 2036 in this regard.

Page 18 of 72



Biodiversity

7.28

7.29

Policy LP30 of the Local Plan to 2036 states that “a proposal will
ensure no net loss in biodiversity and achieve a net gain where
possible.” As a domestic annexe building it is also exempt from
biodiversity net gain regulations. It is not considered that the
change of use of the land (given its current condition) would
prove harmful in terms of biodiversity and this can reasonably be
off-set by enhancements such as bat and bird boxes etc and
these are indicated on the submitted plans and shall be secured
by condition. Given the location of the site, a further condition to
prevent external lighting is also considered prudent in the event
that Members choose to support the proposal.

Having regard to the above, the proposal is considered to be
acceptable in terms of biodiversity impacts and broadly accords
with Policy LP30 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036.

Impact on trees

7.30

7.31

There are some trees within and surrounding the vicinity of the
application site and some of these are identified on the submitted
proposed plan. The proposed annexe would not encroach into
the root protection areas or canopies or any nearby trees. No
details of tree protection measures have been provided. The
Tree Officer has been consulted and raises no objection subject
to a condition regarding a tree protection plan. Therefore, it is
recommended if Members are minded to approve the application
that tree protection details are secured by condition.

Therefore the proposal is considered to be acceptable in terms of
impact on trees and in accordance with Policy LP31 of the Local
Plan.

Other Matters

7.32

The applicant has confirmed that the annexe is for his mother
and that a functional link would exist between the annexe and
the existing house. The annexe would share amenity space with
the existing dwelling. No separate vehicular access or parking is
proposed for the annexe. Officers note the positioning of the
annexe within the proposed extended garden contributes to the
ancillary nature of the proposal. As mentioned above, the
ancillary nature of the annexe can be secured by condition.

Conclusion

7.33 Planning law requires that applications for planning permission

be determined in accordance with the development plan, unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

Page 19 of 72



7.34

7.35

7.36

7.37

7.38

The principle of development is considered acceptable against
the aims and objectives of Policies LP10, LP11 and LP12 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036.

The siting, size and relationship of the land to the adjacent
dwelling and wider countryside would not result in unacceptable
harm, due to the loss of agricultural land or to the intrinsic
character and beauty of the wider countryside.

The siting, scale and design, of the annexe does not cause
visual harm in the proposed extended residential
garden/curtilage and would not result in visual harm to the wider
countryside setting.

The proposal would be acceptable in regard to impacts on
designated heritage assets, flood risk, surrounding residential
amenity and biodiversity.

Having regard for all relevant material considerations, it is
concluded that the proposal would accord with local and national
planning policy. Therefore, it is recommended that planning
permission be approved.

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to conditions to
include the following
e Time limit
Plans
Materials
Ancillary use
Removal of PD rights
Boundary treatment
Lighting scheme
Tree Protection details

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text
version or an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388424
and we will try to accommodate your needs

CONTACT OFFICER: Kevin Simpson
Enquiries kevin.simpson@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Page 20 of 72


mailto:kevin.simpson@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

<CPM Plan App Abbs Ho north annexe 2>

Dear Sirs:

As reguested, I am pleased to submit the ohservations of Chesterton Parish Meeting
(“CFM’) on Flanning application 24/961323/FUL which is more or less a re-submission
of 22/62547/FUL. Thus our observations on that Application remain walid for this
one, as do our ohservations on the allied Application 24/66694/FUL, relating as
they do to the same location. They should therefore be read in their entirety, but
we summarise our comments below.

We take the Application to cover:
e change of land use from agriculturgl to residential
e the construction of an annexe (colloguially & ‘granny annexe’) to the north
of the “main residence” currently under construction at the south end of
Field No7916

The entire proposed development area (Field WNo7916 in the early 1976°s 0S5 map) is
an overgrown orchard originally established sometime before 1886. It is now
largely deforested at the southern end, but most of the remaining dacres is
planted with mature trees.

At some time in the past - probably in an earlier Local Plan, or in one of its
supplementary documents - HOC published a plan which set a houndary for the
curtiledge of the village’s built up area, and this ran along the watercourse
bhehind the houses in the first part of Oundle Road and thus it excluded Field Mo
7916 altogether. 0Other than the accepted planning variation'™ of this at the wvery
southern end of the site, we still hold to this houndary as a guiding principle.
50 to us the greater part of Field 7916 is excluded from any development.

[ (1) The main dwelling itself was only approved during the temporary application of the “tilted
halance’ [a relaxing of planning regulations], otherwise its building would have contravened the
Local Plan].

Consequently, as positive Planning Applications relating to this site are of such
recent date, it remains a ‘controversial’® site, and any additional proposals are
‘sensitive’ to neighbouring householders.

Material Planning Considerations
The problems of access and egress to the site of the main residence (down the
narrow and tortuous track from Oundle Road) were a major part of the objections
to the Application for the building of that residence, to the extent that the
consent limited access and egress to just this house and proscribed any from The
Abbots House or Priory Gardens. By describing the new building as an “annexe™, it
might permit the applicants to treat both buildings as one household, whereas
access onto the Oundle Road has only so far been permitted for the wvehicles of one
house.

The newly proposed annexe has all the same deficiencies of access, which are
exacerbated by it having no direct wvehicle access itself; certainly not beyond the
Page 21 of 72



main house, some 68m away; a somewhat inhumane situation if our hypothetical
‘“granny’ is also disabled. In reality the tortuous access to the entire site does
not, in our opinion, support safe vehicle movements from more than one elite
residence here (the one already with consent).

The OED defines the word “annexe™ to suggest a relationship between things which
are contiguous or in extremely close proximity. The distance between the two
buildings at the heart of this Application leads us to guery if “annexe” is really
appropriate in this case.

Furthermore, the extreme northern location begs the guestion, “why, considering
the large size of the building plot does the proposed annexe have to be build so
far away from the main residence”, and to which it seems only tenuously connected
by 68m of footpath 7 There seems to be no obvious reason why ‘urbanisation’ should
bhe pushed this far north, especially as the distance will become more tiresome as
‘granny’ gets older. One might posit the view that the proposed annexe looks
suspiciously like the core of another prospective main residence, and only needs
to he doubled in size in order to create another such residence.

The proposed annexe appears to be devoid of any architectural ornamentation,
making it extremely plain and utilitarian (indeed, if the windows were smaller it
might easily be mistaken for an ablution hlock on a camp site). We appreciate that
it’s in a very isolated position, but surely & brilliant white external finish is
rather garish in a predominantly green orchard/mature tree setting. Perhaps some
more natural and sustainable materials, such as timber cladding would find a more
appropriate use here.

Isolated it might be, but there are still neighhours, and the proposed annexe
would seem to be a prime candidate in the debate over perceptions of, or degrees
of, overlooking and the perceived intrusion of privacy. As with other planning
applications in this immediate area we have to admit that there is bound to be a
degree of what one might call ‘mutual overlooking’ hetween the elite residences.
Howewer, the degree of owverlooking, loss of privacy etc is something which can
only be assessed on the ground, preferabhly by the Case O0fficer whilst making the
official site visit.

The proposal to plant a small number of treessshrubs in a slight arc on the
eastern side of the proposed annexe may provide some screening once they are
mature, and is laudable in that respect. But might not development here have a
deleterious affect generally on the 2rowing trees (considering their usually large
root systems) 7

Finally, what is our hypothetical ‘granny’ to do with her three wheeled-bins in
respect of storage and collection 7

Details of this Application have been submitted to members of our Standing
Committee and their comments have been mixed. HWe have had representations made to
us by close neighbhours canvassing support for their opinions. We hawve merged these
fas well as we can) into the foregoing ohserwvations. Wevertheless, we collectively
continue to recommend ‘refusal’.

Page 22 of 72



Yours faithfully

Clerk, Chesterton Parish Meeting

Page 23 of 72



Development Management Committee
APpIication Ref: 24/01323/FUL

Scale - 1 :1 ’250 © Crown copyright and database rights 2024
Date Created: 06/11/2024 Ordnance Survey HDC AC0000849958

The Site
[ ] Listed Buildings

Page 24 of 72




100/SO/SS9/4T0T/ VAL ON Suimerq

“Jiom Jo saders aeudosdde 2y 1e o pates aq o) e suonoadsm suonemFay Supping ||V
HEIHOd £V 18 0STI 01 [ S2[B08 “suonannsul paund sImoRInUERRY puE SMEIIL) WawFy suonemaay Suiping
‘SPARPURLS YSTLIE JUDLIND (I S0URPIODIE [|N) U1 3g O} DI S[RLIA|RLL PUR $YI0M ||\ 5
70T um_._w_ui e “paIapIsu0d aq AR SJUAWIPUAIWE uSisap 181 0s [Ieap n_m__z [euoheN| L961€000L SO
ut papodas uaag saryAat sSapUN SUONIPUOD [EULIOUE 10) padacar ag ued Anpqisodsas oy
“BAIR A} oypae[al suonipuod aps [eadA) uodn paseq are Fulmerp SIy) U0 WMOYS S|P ||y

L €202/€0/01 peseydind "ausd
0z siubu aseqejep pue ybuAdon Umoi)

NEAM SAWe Iy - Jui) oA FUDUAL0D
0.1 HOdd satuadaasip Aue podas pug ajis uo SUOISUIWLD [[B 3233 0 SI I019RANL0]) A |, .
Japjoy Jyfusdos
HAXANNY - NV1d NOLLVDOT - 23t L wETSmLﬁ— A1 JO uoissTunad uanum oYM Pansst uadq sey 11 [ongm 1o uri ;o asodind fue
10y pasn to paydesfojoyd ‘pardos ‘paseyy ‘pasage ag jou Aew pue ySuddoa st Furmedp sy,
‘ 1afoad
_._mno.ﬂo&uouvm uonHRsaYD S YIEA Bon2auL0d uy(ll Aq paredaid 1oyio Aue 10 SumeIp sup woly 9[Eds [ ON O
suapien) K101 3SNOH $10qqY JO YHON pue SALON
{je axauuy

[elUSPISY PAYIeId(] B JO UOIIAIY pue afe[n))
[ERUSPISaY 0] pue Jo asn) Jo afuey) pasodoid

ynrodaspuepl €€/L6T SLLLO PL
1d6 01dd saur] ‘awnog
‘proy 1JOH ALy Aep 10101A ‘G \

s1aauiSuy Suip[ing paianey)
SOJBIO0SS Y AOI(] Uyof

\ _.,,
—
NOILONYLSNOD ¥IANN al P
4DVYVD ANV ISNOH AFINISNOD \ w bs 009y
A_ /\\\ |

Page 25 of 72 1000001

weoo00t

AXANNY 4S0dO¥d j

sioaulbua
Buip|ing jo
uolenosse
paJayeyd

aged




T00/AXANNY/HLIS/SS9/+T0T/ VAT ON Sutmelq
NBIIOG €V 1B QS O3 | SA[RIS
$TOT 180y e
HEA\ SOWIE[ TN : U3
axauuy - moke| aug : 2] Suimelq]

ySnoroqiala ‘uoulsay)
suapien) K1011J ASNOH $10qqY JO GUON pue]

je afe1en) pue Suijamq payoria( pasodolg

ynoapanpu@mepl €€LL6T 8LLLO 1AL
Ld6 01dd sour ‘swinog
‘proy 1oy Auay)Aep 101914 ‘¢
s1aauifug Suipjing palauey)
SQIBID0SS Y a1 utjof

xog 1eg 7 Jo[Famyog

xog u1qoy I2[32mMYdS HT

“YA0TE 1001 PISLIDUIRIUOD YUIF Waf|-7 ]
JPIOD 1S3 | BajoTUOW X BIEPIOD

00 Fwag -y
BAILI) SAWE,
Addy oy

laauibua Bulp|ing
paialiey

aged

0D Buig-g
ORI IS0,
Tead g Md
OELSIMUPE
00 Fwag| - 8 JIRAU0D A EUGIUL PIADYS JotaRnuen aqn senbapeut s syidap posdon 5 aouruasod dHSW Wsignsity @

Jajieag sjneg,
riediaae] sniaee)

0 Bueap |-y waay ajdepy prarg ansades oy

17 Fwag -5 ASB [22f] BHIBAJAS snFEg

“sdojsioop

U jea] 100p AU} u2amiag Furiado meas Wigy ¢ Wi # 248 0} J00p auenua ajdoung

OO A1 WL SRR (G5 [-0F ] SO [[B) B 2aRy 0) STUIpUET [puuTyd 2T Ui a|quins i (g |
[T WINITKELT) TR0 JAIRaM B Il papiaodd povysan [asa] ajqissanse U SARI] 01 JOOP SIURIUE
ONIATING THL OLNT SATOHSTHHL YOOd THATT I THISSIIOV

[2[grInsun aq 100 pmos jFuns

PUE [AARIT §1 1INS (RSN A500]) I8N ST PUR ARG [2aym e Jo wEam agr Sunsoddns jo spqedea
1[S HOW PUR WL 3 0 [BUaem a3epms yoeorddy (p:| ueg 11818 ou s|[e} 5010 31M ‘apia
WL 1589] 18 pue (7| uey) 2dams ou 1oop souryua sjdouud s on gaeosdde [aas] & aplaotg
HOVOHddY ONITTEMA THAST

SAPOU ISTAII IO SSIUN HIONSIO0H GIY DAY O] SIRT) Y0 Y

“YI0)S 1000 PASLIIUIEIUOD YRS W [-T ], PI0D) SIAIRY ,, EN[OUOW X BYEPIOD VIN], 6T
00 Buag(-g  aoysiag opding,  wnid ddld 8T

00 Fwag|-g  w2Aquid oysd,  wild Gdid LT

00 WY OUE ANSII0N,  IBI] A 9T

DI BWAQ[-g AdudIyuO), B Dd §T

DO Fwag]-g ~ApiEH Aunog, 134 HEd bT
03 Fwag[-g  Joyieasmiuagy,  uosweg WA €7
0 Fwag-g Ems, Ausyd 80 I
0o Smog -y wewe g amsanaoy,  apddy amy 1t

00 Bwai-g " araug sauep, addy ey o7

N0 fwag-g yooy ydasor,  euerdnone sngiog 5|

N Fwa -8 (ye0 usyBuyg)  mgos snasandy w1

00 Swag -y (Y0 uaaaiioag)  xajsnasand) L]

00 Swap[-§ (g S035)  SSIAlAs snuLy 9]

TN Posiooy D) Twagl-g (AU PILAM) AR SINNL] €]
00 fuap(-§ (pddy qui pim)  SnsaaAs snE p

0D fwapi-g (1ajIeI s, neg) eEdaaey sndaeea) g

0D Fwag|-g (e pay)  winIqn 123y 7|

0y Fwag -4 (opdejy sprang aag)  npiaep a0y ||

137 T | -4 FEOS WESGIY M, TUR SNGI0S ()]

0 Bwag -5 0N Y0 Mgoa snaang ‘g

0y Swap [-§ 170, uadsy gpnwa snpndo,] ‘g

07 Sy -§ A B4 Yaaag] manwads sndey (L

030 Fuag -y dedg sy cds snadyg -
1)) Swap[-§ ovog ummoy] euednoe snqiog -

BTN o0isI00Y D) Fag | -5 ed g AUog7) Pl WNIAE ST, ©

i g

AnfIEU o g o) a0k ||y Rmdjod pamea-aaem pasosdde ue or paddip joo ag

[1Ys 2098 1000 e ||y spuim Furlip

Ploa jo spouad Suunp 10 punog sy ‘padiopaiem st punasd AU A N0 paLLmy
aq 10U [[eys Funued G540 Aq paonposd se FUIPUTE IURL] 10} 303V JO 2P0

i aauEpaoae ul papodsuen pue payaed ag |(egs sjuejd ||y awagag voneagisy

AN Y LH 24 3pun pos fuid

Bl [

SIRITIITEOUTIN PUT S2IEIILE) JUatUaIfy nenday uippng spaep
S JURLIND (LM 2IUBPI0INE [[1J 01 34 0 9T S[ELAIEW PUR SYI0M ||y
‘paiapl aq AR SjUILp UFISIP PRI 05 [IRIDP 0 pajodal usaq aAegAaLg)

0D (Lot 10) pardasoe ag ury A

a0 SUDUAWWDD (3], YOTHI

satauadazasip Aue podar pue 3115 U0 SUCISUILLIP [[B Y23 0] S1 I0JIRNUo.) 1],
aapiet igFuidod 21 Jo vorssiad usm nogm

PanssE uasy suj 1y sof unys saupo asodmd Sue sop pasn ao payderFojoqd

‘pardos “pasen ‘pasaie aq 100 Apw pue njFuidos st Fumeap sig,

waload sup g

UOLAAULOD Ul el Aq paaedaad oo Aue do Buraep Sigwog eS| ON 00

SALON

Fuuado wapy WG ¥ WWHOY qiim 09/09 — THW - 78 86

01 2 A[RANELIAE A 1o (7)) 04 Jo Furwado smeapa aard o1 adAl wmana a1 jo 2q (eys A2
(] APRID ) LAFSH ILM SJUEPINAIE U |[B 4 1aa7 ) SY00 | Uem ssa) 100 gaam

PUE TOIL JSB JO 20 |[RUS Speed L0 WAL 10§ SIWEL] PUE S1I2A00 3|0yuel wayed Anp wmpats 2]
FEESNEDC O Hoa ananp afuns yFnoupeadc], sfunse)y afeoinic] o g (88 uon

NP RN, A2DARIS PUER UKIUEIS S0 (E0SC] "ON UGH A[IaNp 10 { )L 0N SPRoS] )
LENSQ "ON uodr1sey ‘adues ydnry wajig, sfunse) adeateic) saun ag pue Sutuado mwa)d wugg
¥ W09 B AARY 10 09N < 3% S 013G [[U0S A3y (¥ OPRID ) {6 SH [ 3IURPIOISE UL ||
SO (2208 PO Qi JaaFor payul] pue uonsas wenduen o ul paannsuod adi) umsuadsns
uiod 220 FUIe-uou uoar 1SEY ANp AAB 211 a0 [[RYS SPRO I8 SHUEL PUR SI2A00 2O 21 ]
© SAEL] PUE SI3A0]) SJOYUERY

“spEap QUOYINY [B307] 01 I2MIS 2115 1J0 0} U010

“AEPPOS K] 0§31 RN WA | UI PAPUNGUNS puR pappag ag o1 531 nd 1ajur youg
Joiaadsuy FUIPHING [Im s U0 paaiie ag o] sIAqUIEYD Jo azis pue yidap jaex
ISQUIEYD [0 SUOISUILID

O ORG) 5] 10U SUDISUILILD PUR 258G U003 YIIY| WILLHES | WL [0 1)ing g 0] §
[[IOOLUS PUT HSN] ag 01 PUR STHoW jooadianea qua paiog ag o siop

"AU2MAS|I MNP WP “seaie Supjied pue SpRoT Ul SIUR1) PUE SE2A00 AINP AARIH]
Asouuaddn sTor gus pie|

20 0 STOL I SR Puog] SIFus u prep g TULauITua-Iuas ul S| em g Yo wuggy
ssmopoy se g asodmd ag 01 unuge 1B IAEAE SLAAUL YT SIaquEELD uonadsu)

HIOMNILIG UI PAULIOY 0] 0F SISQLIELD 13GIC)

‘pasoadde [enba

10 seaquueys auajddosdSod pauuopasd Uossdap] 250 WG WYL SSAE 0 SUSAUL LI SI2QMEYD 10
o paasdn aq o1 azs pun idap 1oy
*STULMEIP U0 UMOUS S8 PAjEI0] aq 0] SIaqumys uonsadsu]

"SARMIALIP

ut sprof afaiyan o) senbape aq pui sTULP|NG W S1I9A00 PA[EIS A[GROP WADP 1]0g DAL 0] Stagquiry
uonaadsu suni WFRNS Ur WeE APA PUR SUDEIIUN0I “U0NIAND Jaad] Jo saFumya (e paptaod

ApmeEyEog .

Page 26 of 72

HTIN A 0y 00 Tuag | -g Ay apddy qriD susaa)ds snjegy aq 01 SIAQUIEYD uoHIadsul Imawep sy JAJN Ameudood Supenb puncadiapun “fjriauan
00 Fuwag |-y ad-og yong aapg vnpuad epnisg SHAAWYHD NOLLOASNI
00 fwag-§ wray apdey prarg ansadue daay o + +
“§o0 puis juaaaid o) paysyqessa (nun Funueld e omd 10 1e24 B 1) FulAnd o R
10 Turgeys annbai (1w saar Lt
uatnaadg pajy s ajoy Funuepd g se siaqaod s e o1 Ajpngae wepd ap punoe wug
¥ 15 Funueld 2y s 2a9] -unseas Funue)d ajgepear 150y 2y 18 spmap pasosdde ay) s 20URpI0IdE U N0 paLUED 20 [[Eys awanas Funuepd a sayeazay ]

‘satoads pue Jaqumu *azrs juajeamba ey pasepdad aq saajasway feys Funueld o s1ead oA unpIM FUTAP SMOIIFP 10 sqIys

*saan) Juatmaaidar Ay pasejdar Fuiag sataads poe saguing ‘azis juajpanba e i 05523008 11aL] 10 's1ado[2Aa(] au) A UOSEIS
Fupueyd ajgepear 1xau sy Fuunp paarjdas ag jeys awayes Turdeaspur) 2y Jo uoneuawapdun 2y jo swak aal M [d 1 M o uot
aup ur] asodmd so3 1jun 10 p 1p awedaq ‘p aum ‘a1p ey 8 i) paaoxdde ag jo ped Sumnog saSpay 10 sgruys ‘saan Ay
‘T PAUIEINOD SJIEIDP DU I OURPIOIIE

aan sy punade jros 2 asepd [ pdap Sunuepd wauoea ayp apoy Funuepd mp jo azis 2 1snlpe

IESER0a0 YA A

o prasds aq uns spo0s 3y ey Furyaay jon g1 u uegd YT 0] SIPIS PUR aSEG A 1A jio)

MEREEA, PuE [eq oo 20
Jo qidap aup o) eI (P7-] ) WAG-OE BOXD UR FUIPPE SI001 J0 PEAIDS PHRIINSD 313 100 YIRjy
YRR PUE 1AQEIA0) USRI 1IN0 PALUEd ag Aeapt pnoys Sunuepd sa1)

1 pajuatuad aq jieys uepd JUawsEeuem Sy ] I91Ie3 3 §
Ay jo uonednaaa g Furso|o) voseas Surued sag s wegaare) ou pasesdde se no pataes aq (jeys awayas Jodeaspur) yos ay |
ADINVITINOD INASNOD DONINNY T




100/AXANNY/SS9/4T07/VAS ON Sutmeiq
NenIod £V I8 Q0T 03 T SI[edS

NOILVAATA HLNOS NOILLVAATA LSAM

¥T0OT AN 7ed o | (
TeA\ SOWIB I : JUSID | V \ ‘\
S[Te19(q 9XduUUY : I, Suimerq T. ¢ ® B

(ySno10qI1019J ‘U0l)say)) suopren) K10l 9SNOH s10qqV JO [IION pue] 454 X08
e oFeien) pue Jurom( payoed pasodoid a0

qn-00302mpu@epl €€£L6T 8LLLO 1PL
Ld6 01dd sour] ‘oumog
‘PeOY OH ALYD'ABA IOWIA ‘G
s1oouISuyg Suip[ing paisrey)
SOJBIO0SS Y OLOI(] UYOf

‘sAep uosiad 00g spaaxy (q) :10 19eloid ayy ur jurod Aue je A[snosueynuirs
SunjIom sIoyIom ()7 Uey) aIouwr sey pue sAep Supjiom (¢ uey) 1o3uof iseT (8):syIom we wQ

9y} J1 S)IB)S JI0M UOTIONIISUOD 910Jaq d]qIssod se U00S Se paly1ou 9q 0 SI IANNIIXH AJ9Jes pue |

)[BOH 9Y], ‘0S Op 0} 10USISIP dY) PuB NOA USIMIAQ JUIWAAISE UINLIM B ST 1Y) papiaoid ‘sannp ! |
) U0 2y} ued I2USISIP Y] 1030enU0d [ediourid 10 10J0LIUO0D A} 0) PALIRJSURI) A[[eojRWOINE
[[14 SaUNP INOK 10U JI I010BNUOD SUO UBY) SIOW SI 3137} UAYM 1010enuod [ediourid € pue
1ouS1sop [ediourid e yurodde 0 ST JudI[O O1)SIWOP A ], SIUSI[O onsawo(] *(3oofoxd oy Surstuesio
pue SuiSeuew 10§ 9oe[d ur sjuowOFURLIE I AIOY) AINSUI PUL UOHONIISUOD dY) AJRUIPIO0D
pue oFeuew ‘uefd 03) 1030enU00 [ediourid € pue (10m uisop pue Juruueyd oy} AJeUIPIOOd
pue oFeuew ‘uefd 03) 1ouSisop [edrourid e (Sunum ur) yurodde 0 pau [[IM JUI[O Y} ‘PIAJOAUL

opease)) UNIBAl 1AIg YIr[q - SPooS Ay

Surropual mo[oq s3uroej SureourSus pay

SI00p PUE SMOPUIM KOID) AIORIYIUY

spIe0q 981eq pUE SPIJOS ‘SPIe0q BIOSE] 1D OBIUY
sa[1) Joou urejdon(q pue[pay Aa10) [eOOIRYD)

MY OUJEIL 9106 TV PUSY 3 - SULIPUDI [RUINIXE

sioaulbus 9Q 0} SI 10}0BNUOD JUO ULY SIOW JI 100eNU09 € Jutodde Jsnu Ul Sy L *S107 Suonemnsoy
Buipjing jo JsuaSeuRy pue uSisa uononnsuo) ag £q apiqe isnuruand ay s oz snotvinomi wao  NOLLVAHTH LSVH NOILVAdTd HLION
UONEIDOSSe

paJaLeyd .

aqged

BB_“_

‘Terorewr Surppaq ut Surdwey £q sjods 1jos [eo0] uSpIEH

‘[eLIojew Surppaq pajeprosuod im ooefdor pue sjods piey pue s1opjnoq ‘uonoafoid yoo1 ‘pnur sAowRY

'sadid 10 spaq Suike| 210Joq A[o)eIPIWIWI UOTIBULIOJ 0} JBABIXH

- A[[e1ouds spaq 10J UONLRULIO]

*payg1oads J1 uoIsUIWIP

10510 10 wWw()¢ snid adid Jo IojoWeIp [LUINIXO UBY) SSO] 10U INq 9[qeonoeld S [[BWS Se YIPIM B JO 0 PUE SOPIS [EOIIAA dABY Jsnu youan 9y odid Jo UMOI0 9A0QE UU()(E 0} WOH0q WOL]
-2 youan jo jred om0

< Surjpoeg / Suneaeoxyg

4004

LNOAVTA00Y d4SOd0Odd LNOAVTIOOTd d4SOdOdd

‘ww(g | $S9] SUIp[INg Woij 9oue)sIp 0} [enbo UONEPUNO) Mo[aq [9A9] 0} dn 23010U00

M YOUST UTRIp [[J ‘BUIP[ING WOIJ 319U JUO UBY) IYHNJ SIYA\ "UONEBPUNOJ JO [IAS] 1S9MO] 0}
dn ‘vonepunoy el 1omo[ pue SUIP[INg JO AXOW U0 UIYIIM IAYM 3)IOUOD YIIM SOYIUDI]} UTRIp [[1]
“19A0 [uI]

pue deim sse[SoIqY WWST [IM JUSWS[IAS [BHUIIIP WOy s[[eam ydnoxy) Suissed surerp 100)01g
‘odid 195001, Suo[ w9 Aq PaMO[]0J ‘UONOAUTU0D IOqUIBYD UOoddsUT

JO WG | urpim pue Surpjing SuLuS Jo WG| urgiim papiaoid oq o jurof ureIp o[qrxaq
*OpISIOPUN Qe[S JO W) UIYIIM UMOIO JISYM qR[S

100[J Yy AJ[eIS01Ul ISBO ‘0)0I0U00 WWI()()| PUE SSE[SIqL) WWGZ Ul PAsLoud SuIp[ing Jopun surel([
*2d) umMOp MaI10S JO 2q 0} S10A09 Joquueyd uondadsur JySomysIT

‘sowely

I9A00 0] PUNOLINS PUE Paq 3)9I0U0Y) "seare Funjred pue peor ur Swely pue 1409 (y71 NI-SH)
Sz14d sse[) 'seare pajued pue syred ur owres pue 10409 (471 NI-S€) STV SSe[) "owely pue

I9A00 TIM TeLIdJRW Fnp-Se Pajod[as U0 pappaq s1oquieyd uonoadsur susfddoidAjod “erp wwggy
*91010U0D WIL()()| YIIM PIpUnoLns pue pappaq (1oddoy

a1enbs pue den-q yoeq-moj) Aong jo1ur yjorq padden pue yoels [10s Jo 9seq 0} spuaq 1531 NDAJ
‘sqe[s Jo opisiopun pue urelp jo doy usamioq [[1y Jejnuerd wwg/, yim sadid 10a0 SuiSpuq se

Page 27 of 72

N
A

sqe[s Suraed 93010100 9ARY 0) SunjIed/SPLOI IOPUN 10U 19A0D WI(()9 UBY) SSI] M SUIRI(] TOA0 SUISPLIQ 210U PIDIOJUIAT IARY 0} FUD[IRd/SPROT I9pUN I9A00 WWI()()6 UeY) SSI] YITM SUTRI]
"6002 :1-10¥1 N S s Adwoo 0) oFeurerp punois mo[oq [[y "suonoun( pue UonodIIp Jo safueyo [[e J& ssa00e SuIppoI opIA0ld [eLIajeut

9[qIss21dw0d J9A0 QR[S 9)9IOUOI PIVIOFUIDI WL(()] YIM PIISA0D 9q 0} sadid MO[[eYS "(SIALIP J9PUN WI()()6) JIA0D J[qeIINS W9 IPIAOIJ "UONOIUUOD SUIBW O} JUIIPRIS (f UI | 0} [[Orq
3np-se pojoa[es pue { dqeL, ‘€861 78S 01 SUILIOJUOD Paq Je[nUEIS W] UO pre| [[B} Op: © 9AIS 03 y1om adid Arejordord HAJN IJoWRIp W[ | JO ISISUOD 0) dFeUIRIP pUnoIsIopun
ADVNIVIA TNOd ANNOADITANN

“Kemexyeos Jo yydop pue uisop SurIop 03 1s9) A)sorod € no A1red A1essoodu J1 souly Jo uoneidiu jusaaid o) punoins [Nxa)0as s [ renueid

d1qens yim (jeaordde sontoyiny (2007 0) udop 03 10) Aroedes andw o1qnd | Jo Ul 9q 0) Aemedeos ‘[ Jejnuels wwigg| ur papunosmns sadid HAJN P wwi[ | eIA ‘Surpjing Aue woiy
KeMe W()'G JO SOUBISIP UIWI © PAJBN)IS ‘AeMENROS MOU 0) UYE) Iemurey ‘sadidumop JHAJ( BIP WWIGY OJUI PIIOSUUOD PUB UNe) S19)INT Punol Jiey JAJ( W] MU 3q 0} SPOOT 1ajemurey]
ADVNIVIA YILVMNIVY

10m Jo sade)s oerrdordde ay) Je Jno parLes 2q o3 21e suonoddsur suonensay Surpying [V

‘suononysul

pajuLd s1oImoeInUE pue sa)eoynIa)) JudweIdy ‘suonenSoy Suipjing ‘spiepuelS YsHLIg JUSLIND YJIM 9IUBPIOOIE [[NJ Ul 9q 0} dJE S[ELIJEUI PUE SYIOM [V
*PaIdPISU0D 9q Aew Sjuswpuowe uSIsop Jeyy os [1ejop ul parrodar useq oAryAay) ssafun

SUONIPUOI [ewIOUqE J0J paydosoe aq ued A1[iqrsodsar oN “BoIe 9} 0) PAJE[AI SUONIPUOd a)Is [eold£) uodn paseq ore SUIMEBIP ST} UO UMOYS S[TEIdP [V

“Jom Surououos O, YOI sorouadordsip Aue j10dar pue o)Is U0 SUOISUSWIP [[€ J0dYD 0} ST J0J0eNU0)) oY,

“19p1oy 1y311Ldod oy Jo uorssturiod uopLIM

JNOYIIM PANSSI UdAQ SBY J1 YOIy 10} ueyy Joyjo dasodind Kue 1oy pasn 1o payderSojoyd ‘pardoo ‘pasen ‘paidye oq jou Aew pue JyS1Adod st Suimerp siyy
109(01d sty yym uonodsuuod ur ydr £q paredaid 1otpo Aue 10 Suimelp siy) wolj [eds LON od

AR

‘s1oumo Aj1edord Sururofpe yim

paoISe A[[euLIo} 9q 0) dIe SOLIEPUNOQ AUB JOAO SHUSWIYOROIOUD AUy
*9)IS 9]} JO SOLIEPUNOQ [ESA] oY) UIYHIM J[INQ O O} ST AINJINNS AU
‘K&1xadord oy 03 spaop

A1) 0} 9OULIAJAT Aq PAUTULIRIOP 9q 0} a1k suonisod Arepunoq joexs
‘Kuoyny

[8007T oy} yim paaiSe A[[euriof aq 03 a1e uSIsop oY) 0) SuoneId[e Auy
‘Kyoyine jonuo)) Surpring ayy £q 231s uo paroidde usaq

QAR SUOTIB[NO[LD [EINJONS [[B [IUN )IS UO 9OUSWIIOD 0} ST JI0M ON
'SOIOW UL I8 UMOYS S[OAQ] ||V

*SOIIQWII|[IW Ul dI8 SUOISUIWIP [[V

‘syeaordde

K10)ye)s Jo yuowainoold ayy 1oy A[ojos paredord usaq oaey sSuimel
SHOM JO JUSWAIUIWIWOD

ayy 03 J011d 10J0BNU0D Aq 2)IS UO PAIAYD 8q 0} DI SUOISUSWIP [[V
paure)qo usaq daAey sjeaoidde £10)mess [[e [HUN SOUSWOD O} JI0M ON
TVIANTD

NHHDLIX/ONINIA/ONIAIT

LALALY

as4d Xxod
Xo0q SurpIelg AMsooq as4d Xod

wd 00Hu

201A21D)

ouf 2 Apae)oul .G 0Ddu
saxogq Jeg
004 payesSoyuy

DNIAI'T

Noodadd




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3b

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE 18" NOVEMBER 2024

Case No:  24/00694/FUL

Proposal: PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE OF LAND TO
RESIDENTIAL CURTILAGE AND ERECTION OF A
GREENHOUSE DOME (RETROSPECTIVE)

Location: LAND NORTH OF ABBOTS HOUSE, PRIORY
GARDENS, CHESTERTON

Applicant: MR. J WATT
Grid Ref: 512799 295519
Date of Registration: 16" July 2024

Parish: CHESTERTON

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE

This application is referred to the Development Management
Committee (DMC) in accordance with the Council’s Scheme of
Delegation, as the Officer recommendation of approval, is contrary
to that of the Parish Councils recommendation for refusal.

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

Site and Surroundings

1.1 The site is located to the northeast of the small settlement of
Chesterton and is surrounded by residential development to the
east and south. To the west of the application site are agricultural
fields and to the north and within the applicant’s ownership is an
area of woodland.

1.2  The application site comprises a dwelling and detached garage
permitted under 18/01689/FUL and subsequent application
23/01407/S73, which is currently under construction. The site also
hosts an area of rough grass, established trees, a formal garden
and dome greenhouse (the subject of this application) to the north
of the dwelling. A pond and associated brook bound the site to the
east. Public vantage points of the site are screened by well-
established trees and hedgerows along the site boundaries.

1.3 The site is located to the northeast of two Grade Il listed buildings
known as the Priory and Stable House and one Grade | listed
building St Michaels Church. The application site is not within a
Conservation Area. The site is located within Flood Zone 1 and

Page 29 of 72



1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

2.1

2.2

therefore at lowest risk from river and sea flooding however, there
is a pond and brook which run along the eastern boundary of the
site, therefore the site is some risk from surface water flooding.
There are no other designated assets or habitats within or in
proximity to the site.

The Proposal

The application seeks planning permission to extend the
residential curtilage/garden that was permitted under application
reference 18/01689/FUL by changing the use of the former
agricultural land to residential garden/curtilage and retrospective
planning permission for a greenhouse dome that has already been
erected to the north of the site. The development description and
plans have been amended during the course of the application to
apply for a change of use to the agricultural land for it to be
included within the residential curtilage of the permitted dwelling.
For the avoidance of doubt the retrospective application shall be
referred to as ‘the proposal’ in this report.

It is noted that Permitted Development (PD) rights for Classes A
(extensions), B (roof additions), C (other roof alterations) and E
(Buildings within the curtilage) of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 have
been removed from the dwelling on site that is currently under
construction.

This application has been accompanied by the following:
-Planning, Design and Access Statement
-Proposed Plans

Officers have scrutinised the plans and have familiarised
themselves with the site and surrounding area.

NATIONAL GUIDANCE

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF 2023) sets out
the three objectives - economic, social and environmental - of the
planning system to contribute to the achievement of sustainable
development. The NPPF 2023 at paragraph 10 provides as
follows: 'So that sustainable development is pursued in a positive
way, at the heart of the Framework is a presumption in favour of
sustainable development (paragraph 11).'

The NPPF 2023 sets out the Government's planning policies for
(amongst other things):
e delivering a sufficient supply of homes;
¢ building a strong, competitive economy;
e achieving well-designed, beautiful and safe places;
e conserving and enhancing the natural, built and historic
environment

Page 30 of 72



2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

3.3

Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990, Planning Practice Guidance and the National
Design Guide 2021 are also relevant and material considerations.

For full details visit the government website National Guidance

PLANNING POLICIES

Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 (Adopted 15th May 2019)

LP1: Amount of Development

LP2: Strategy for Development

LP4: Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery
LP5: Flood Risk

LP6: Waste Water Management

LP9: Small Settlements

LP11: Design Context

LP12: Design Implementation

LP14: Amenity

LP15: Surface Water

LP16: Sustainable Travel

LP17: Parking Provision and Vehicle Movement
LP20: Homes for Rural Workers

LP25: Housing Mix

LP30: Biodiversity and Geodiversity

LP31: Trees, Woodland, Hedges and Hedgerows
LP34: Heritage Assets and their Settings

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) and Guidance:

Huntingdonshire Design Guide Supplementary Planning
Document (2017)

Developer Contributions SPD (2011)

Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape SPD (2022)
Huntingdonshire Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (2017)
Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD (2017)

LDF Developer Contributions SPD (2011)

Annual Monitoring Review regarding housing land supply
(2020)

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste
Local Plan (2021)

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

The National Design Guide (2021):

C1 - Understand and relate well to the site, its local and
wider context

|1 - Respond to existing local character and identity

12 - Well-designed, high quality and attractive

B2 - Appropriate building types and forms

M3 - Well-considered parking, servicing and utilities
infrastructure for all users

Page 31 of 72


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

. N3 - Support rich and varied biodiversity

. H1 - Healthy, comfortable and safe internal and external
environment

. H2 - Well-related to external amenity and public spaces

. H3 - Attention to detail: storage, waste, servicing and
utilities.

For full details visit the government website

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.1

PLANNING HISTORY

24/01323/FUL- Proposed change of use of land to residential
curtilage and erection of a detached self-build residential annexe.-
Pending Consideration.

23/01407/S73- Variation of condition 2 (plans) to 18/01689/FUL to
amend the design and materials of the approved dwelling and
garage- Permission 18.01.2024

22/02547/FUL- Erection of a detached single storey residential
annexe-Withdrawn 25.07.2024

22/00990/S73- Variation of condition 2 of permission -
18/01689/FUL. Design Improvements- Refused 30.01.2023

21/80309/COND- Conditional Information for 18/01689/FUL: CA1
(Time Limit), C3 (Materials), C6 (Tree Protection), C8 (Levels),
C12 (Ecology)- Details Discharged 24.12.2021.

18/01689/FUL- The erection of a new family dwelling with
garaging and access.-Permission 12.04.2019

CONSULTATIONS

Chesterton Parish Council- Objection and recommend refusal.
Their comments are available to view in full on HDC'’s Public
Access site but broadly relate to the following matters:

e The previous planning applications on site are fairly recent,
and so it remains a controversial site, sensitive to
neighbours

e Theland appears to have been used an orchard for at least
150 years. The site appears to have become overgrown
after 1945, but was owned by the agricultural community

e We do not understand why the dome structure, has been
located in isolation of an overgrown orchard, and feel its
shape would make it difficult to be used as a greenhouse,
and more likely to be used as a summerhouse. The
location is still unsuitable.

Page 32 of 72



6.1

71

7.2

7.3

e Despite the small size of the structure, there must have
been an impact on trees and nature conservation

e The modern materials look out of place in this woodland
environment. Incompatible location for such a structure

e We have had representations made to us by close
neighbours

e Consider the address Land North of Abbots House
misleading, as the location no longer has connection to
Abbots House

REPRESENTATIONS

One representation has been received in objection to the
development proposal raising the following material planning
matters:

e The amended application seeks the change of use of the land,
yet the previous application was solely for the erection of a
greenhouse not located on the site.

e The application could potentially increase development on the
site where there is limited access.

e The application site is woodland and has a natural pond where
there has been evidence of great crested newts.

e A previous application on the site was refused on the basis of
the adjacent private garden being overlooked.

e The greenhouse dome might also be incorporated into another
part of the dwelling at a later stage

e Changing the use of the land would open up possibilities for
additional development on what is currently woodland.

ASSESSMENT

When determining planning applications, it is necessary to
establish what weight should be given to each plan’s policies in
order to come to a decision. The following legislation, government
policy and guidance outline how this should be done.

As set out within the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
(Section 38(6)) and the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(Section 70(2)) in dealing with planning applications the Local
Planning Authority shall have regard to have provisions of the
development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any
other material considerations. This is reiterated within the NPPF
(2023). The development plan is defined in Section 38(3)(b) of the
2004 Act as “the development plan documents (taken as a whole)
that have been adopted or approved in that area”.

In Huntingdonshire the Development Plan (relevant to this

applications) consists of:
* Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 (2019)

Page 33 of 72



7.4

7.5

« Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Minerals and Waste Local Plan
(2021)

The statutory term ‘material considerations’ has been broadly
construed to include any consideration relevant in the
circumstances which bears on the use or development of the land:
Cala Homes (South) Ltd v Secretary of State for Communities and
Local Government & Anor [2011] EWHC 97 (Admin); [2011] 1 P.
& C.R. 22, per Lindblom J. Whilst accepting that the NPPF does
not change the statutory status of the Development Plan,
paragraph 2 confirms that it is a material consideration and
significant weight is given to this in determining applications.

The main issues to consider in the determination of this application
are:

e Principle of development and Impact on the Character of the
Countryside

Impact on heritage Assets

Residential Amenity

Flood Risk

Biodiversity and Impact on Trees

The Principle of Development and Impact on the Character of the
Countryside

7.6

7.7

7.8

The application site is located to the northeast of Chesterton. The
application seeks to increase the size of the residential
garden/curtilage permitted with application ref 18/01689/FUL and
23/01407/S73 by changing the use of some adjacent agricultural
land. It is noted that the greenhouse dome has already been
erected on site and the area of additional land has been integrated
into the existing private garden space. This application seeks to
regularise the change of use of the land and the erection of the
greenhouse.

The proposal shall be assessed against relevant local and national
policies. Chesterton is identified in the Local Plan as a Small
Settlement under Policy LP9 and as such is the starting point to
assess the principle of development.

Local Plan Policy LP9 states that a proposal that is located within
a built-up area of a Small Settlement will be supported where the
amount and location of development proposed is sustainable in
relation to the:

a. level of service and infrastructure provision within the
settlement;

b. opportunities for users of the proposed development to access
everyday services and facilities by sustainable modes of travel
including walking, cycling and public transport;

c. effect on the character of the immediate locality and the
settlement as a whole.

Page 34 of 72



7.9

7.10

7.1

712

The built-up area is defined in the local plan as a distinct group of
buildings that includes 30 or more homes. Land which relates
more to the group of buildings rather than to the surrounding
countryside is also considered to form part of the built-up area.

It is noted that the site was formally associated with the residential
curtilage of Abbotts House and hosted a tennis court with fencing
and ancillary buildings prior to the erection of the dwelling for which
the guidance in Local Plan paragraph 4.8 states the grounds that
relate closely to the buildings, for instance formal gardens,
ancillary parking and hard tennis courts would be considered
within the built-up area. However, in this instance north of the
permitted dwelling and its residential curtilage, the application site
comprises an area of rough grass, trees, a formal garden and
dome greenhouse. Guidance in paragraph 4.85 states that
agricultural land, woodland, meadow where the character of the
land primarily relates to the countryside is excluded from the built-
up area. Subsequently the application site is not considered to be
within or well related to the settlement of Chesterton and therefore
located in the countryside whereby Local Plan Policy LP10 (The
Countryside) is applicable.

Policy LP10 of the Local Plan states that development in the
countryside will be restricted to the limited and specific
opportunities as provided for in other policies of this plan and that
all development in the countryside must:
a. seek to use land of lower agricultural value in preference to land
of higher agricultural value:
i. avoiding the irreversible loss of the best and most
versatile agricultural land (Grade 1 to 3a) where possible,
and
ii. avoiding Grade 1 agricultural land unless there are
exceptional circumstances where the benefits of the
proposal significantly outweigh the loss of land;
b. recognise the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside;
and
c. not give rise to noise, odour, obtrusive light or other impacts that
would adversely affect the use and enjoyment of the countryside
by others.

With regards to Policy LP10 part a, the irregular shaped site is
grade 3 agricultural land and whilst the site is not currently defined
by boundary treatments, the land appears to have been cleared
and is no longer characteristic of its former agricultural land use.
The proposed enlargement to the approved residential
garden/curtilage would result in the loss of 1,872sqm agricultural
land. Officers acknowledge comment made by the Parish Council
in regard to the use of the site as an orchard however, a site visit
undertaken found the site is no longer in use as an orchard for
agricultural purposes. The land is classified as Grade 3 agricultural

Page 35 of 72



713

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

land, which is good to moderate quality agricultural land, and lower
than the top 2 categories of Grade 1 and Grade 2. Therefore its
loss, is not considered would result in the loss of the best and most
versatile agricultural land, in line with Policy LP10.

In regard to part b, of LP10, the site is located within the Northern
Wolds character area as identified in the Huntingdonshire
Landscape and Townscape SPD (2022). Development in the
Northern Wolds should protect and enhance the distinctive
characters of the valley and plateau landscapes through
maintenance of field patterns and long-distance views from the
upland areas and protection of ancient hedgerows and oak trees
within the valleys.

Public vantage points from outside the site are limited as the land
is tucked behind the linear development along Oundle Road and
accessed off a track. The closest Public Right of Way (PRoW) is
over 480 meters to the west of the site and the entire site is
screened from the surrounding countryside to the north and west
by well-established trees and to the south and east with dense
hedging. Whilst it is acknowledged that trees within the site could
be removed without the need for planning permission, this is no
different from the current situation. It is considered the position of
the land and the wider landscaping, ensures that the change of
use of the land to residential garden and the dome structure would
not result in any unacceptable harm to the intrinsic character and
beauty of the countryside, in line with part b) of LP10.

Householder permitted development rights for outbuildings on the
larger garden area can be removed by condition to prevent the
potential for a large coverage of buildings on the site which may
be at odds with the open and spacious visual rural character of the
site and development in the surrounding area. Officers
recommend that should Members be minded to approve the
application such a condition be imposed to protect the character
and intrinsic beauty of the countryside in line with part b) of Policy
LP10. A condition regarding the submission of boundary
treatment is also recommended.

The land of the extended residential garden/curtilage is not
considered disproportionate in size or scale in the context of the
approved house on the application. The land in question already
has a relatively domestic visual character and does not appear
open or characteristic of the surrounding rural countryside.

Officers acknowledge the Parish Council’s concerns relating to the
siting of the greenhouse. However, the site character and
appearance has changed over time, and it no longer functions or
visually appears as agricultural land. The Parish also raised
concerns regarding the use of the dome, whether due to its shape
it could used to grow plants or whether it would be more likely to

Page 36 of 72



7.18

7.19

be used as a summerhouse. How the applicant chooses to use
the building for its incidental domestic purposes is not relevant to
the consideration of this application. What must be considered is
the siting, design, size etc of the dome structure and whether it is
visually acceptable in this proposed extended garden setting.
Whilst the concerns of the Parish in this respect have been
considered, Officers in this instance do not agree and consider that
the design, siting and mass of the dome structure is acceptable
given the proposed change of use to domestic garden and due to
the extent of screening between the proposed structure,
surrounding sites and the open countryside.

With regard to part c) Policy LP10, the greenhouse is
approximately 17 metres west from the common boundary with
No. 4 Oundle Road and the dwelling No.4 is 35 metres east of the
common boundary. This separation distance is considered
sufficient to ensure no significant impacts relating to noise,
disturbance, and odour upon the closest residential neighbour to
their enjoyment of the countryside. As the smaller site already has
permission for residential development and the land beyond the
application site to the north is woodland and the land beyond this
used for agriculture, the extension to the residential
garden/curtilage and dome structure impacts would not result in
loss of enjoyment of the countryside by others.

The principle of the development is therefore to be considered
acceptable in accordance with Policies LP10, LP11 and LP12 of
the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036.

Impact on Heritage Assets

7.20

7.21

7.22

This application seeks to change the use of agricultural land to
residential garden and for a greenhouse dome structure. The site
is not located within a conservation area but is located
approximately 150m from the Grade | listed building St Michaels
Church. Two grade Il listed buildings known as the Priory and
Stable House are also about 80m from the application site.

Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990 states that the Local Planning Authority shall have
"special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its
setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest
which it possesses".

Policy LP34 of the Local Plan to 2036 sets out that proposal should
protect the significance of heritage assets such as Listed
Buildings. Furthermore, Policies LP11 and LP12 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 state that developments
should respond positively to their context, draw inspiration from

Page 37 of 72



7.23

7.24

the key characteristics of its surroundings and contribute positively
to the area's character and identity.

The dome and the land proposed to be changed into garden land
are considered to be visually and physically separated from the
nearby Grade | and Grade Il listed buildings by virtue of the 80m-
150m separation distances. Anda s detailed in preceding sections
of the report, the site is also bounded with mature trees and
hedging to the west, which visually screens the site.

It is therefore considered that the proposal does not result in harm
to the setting and significance of these nearby Listed buildings, in
line with Policy LP34 and the NPPF.

Residential Amenity

7.25

7.26

7.27

7.28

Policy LP14 of the Local Plan to 2036 states a proposal will be
supported where a high standard of amenity is provided for all
users and occupiers of the proposed development and maintained
for users and occupiers of neighbouring land and buildings.

The closest residential dwellings No. 2a, 3, 4, 5 and 5a Oundle
Road are located to the east of the application site. Officers
acknowledge concerns raised by the occupants of No.2a Oundle
Road in regard to the overlooking of the rear amenity space of the
neighbouring dwelling. The dwelling of No. 2a is situated to the
east of the application site and land within the neighbour’s
ownership abuts the brook adjacent to the application site. The
application site is approximately 41 metres southwest from
No.2a’s residential curtilage and does not immediately abut this
neighbours land. By virtue of the separation distance, it is
considered that the proposal does not result in any detrimental
overbearing, overshadowing or overlooking impacts to
surrounding neighbours.

No.5 the closest residential building to the site is 35m from the
common boundary and 65m to the southeast of the proposed
dome. A landscaping condition (condition 3) imposed on
23/01407/S73 ensures the landscaping shown on plan
JDA/2023/MAY/655/SITE/001 is carried out. This landscaping
includes various trees which screen the site from adjacent
neighbours to the east. By virtue of the separation distance and
landscaping screening it is not considered that the dome
greenhouse results in any detrimental overbearing,
overshadowing or overlooking impacts.

The proposed development would result in the land being used for
the recreational enjoyment of the dwelling. However, an extended
garden/curtilage is not considered to unduly impact the amenities
of the adjacent neighbours or the users of the open countryside in
terms of noise and light.

Page 38 of 72



7.29

Taking the above factors into consideration, the proposal is
considered to be acceptable with regard to its impact on residential
amenity and therefore accords with Policy LP14 of
Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036, the Huntingdonshire
Design Guide SPD and Section 12 of the National Planning Policy
Framework in this regard.

Flood Risk

7.30

7.31

7.32

7.33

National guidance and Policy LPS of the Local Plan to 2036 seeks
to steer new developments to areas at lowest risk of flooding and
advises this should be done through application of the Sequential
Test, and if appropriate the Exceptions Test (as set out in
paragraphs 165-175 of the NPPF (2023).

The application site is within Flood Zone 1, based on Environment
Agency flood risk mapping and therefore at lowest risk of river and
sea flooding. However, as stated in preceding sections of this
report due to the pond and brook which run along the eastern
boundary of the site, the site may be at some risk from surface
water flooding.

Given this application is for the change of use of agricultural land
to residential garden/curtilage and a residential dome structure, as
per the NPPF and National Planning Practice Guidance, the
submission of a Flood Risk Assessment, Sequential test and
Exceptions test are not required.

Therefore, the proposal is considered to be acceptable in regard
to flood risk and therefore accords with Policies LP5 of
Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 and Section 14 of the
National Planning Policy Framework in this regard.

Biodiversity and Trees

7.34

7.35

Paragraph 180 of the NPPF (2023) states planning policies and
decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local
environment. Policy LP30 of the Local Plan to 2036 requires
proposals to demonstrate that all potential adverse impacts on
biodiversity and geodiversity have been investigated and ensure
no net loss in biodiversity and provide a net gain where possible,
through the planned retention, enhancement and creation of
habitats and wildlife features, appropriate to the scale, type, and
location of development.

As of the 2" of April 2024, mandatory 10% Biodiversity Net Gain
was imposed on small developments in England as per Schedule
7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. As the application
seeks consent for a 12.5m2 greenhouse dome, would impactless
than 25m2 of non-priority habitats, would not impact 5m of non-
priority linear habitat the impact on biodiversity would be
considered negligible. This application is therefore exempt from

Page 39 of 72



7.36

7.36

7.37

mandatory Biodiversity Net Gain as per the de minims threshold
detailed in the NPPG.

The application is accompanied with a biodiversity checklist.
Given the proposal seeks to change the use of the land to
residential garden/curtilage, install a 12.5m2 greenhouse dome
and does not intend to make alterations to the established trees
and hedgerows on the site, the proposal would not result in
unacceptable adverse impacts to biodiversity.

Officers acknowledge third party representations raised in regard
to the presence of protected species within the adjacent pond. The
18/01689/FUL application for the dwelling was accompanied with
a PEA which determined that the pond on the northeast edge of
the property is of poor suitability for newts due to its impermanent
nature, being mostly dry and overgrown with wetland vegetation.
This application is accompanied with evidence to confirm that the
pond to the northeast edge of the site remains in a similar dry
condition and therefore, the pond is likely to remain an unsuitable
habitat for protected species such as the great crested newt.
However, it should be noted that the dome structure is already in
position, and the change of use of use of the land would not result
in harm should any newts/protected species be present on site.

Overall therefore, Officers are satisfied the proposal would not
result in unacceptable adverse impacts to biodiversity. As such,
the proposal accords with the objectives of Policy LP30 of
Huntingdonshire's Local Plan and Section 15 of the National
Planning Policy Framework and Schedule 7A of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (as inserted by Schedule 14 of the
Environment Act (2021) in this regard.

Conclusion

7.39

7.40

7.41

7.42

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be
determined in accordance with the development plan, unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

This application seeks planning permission to regularise the
change of use of agricultural land to residential garden/curtilage
and for the greenhouse dome structure erected on site.

The principle of development is considered acceptable against the
aims and objectives of Policies LP10, LP11 and LP12 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036.

The siting, size and relationship of the land to the adjacent
dwelling and wider countryside would not result in unacceptable
harm, due to the loss of agricultural land or to the intrinsic
character and beauty of the wider countryside.

Page 40 of 72



7.43 The siting, scale and design, of the dome greenhouse does not
cause visual harm in the proposed extended residential
garden/curtilage and would not result in visual harm to the wider
countryside setting.

7.45 The proposal would be acceptable in regard to impacts on
designated heritage assets, flood risk, surrounding residential
amenity and biodiversity.

7.46 Having regard for all relevant material considerations, it is
concluded that the proposal would accord with local and national
planning policy. Therefore, it is recommended that planning
permission be approved.

8. RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to conditions to
include the following:

e Drawings

e Boundary treatments

e Removal of permitted development rights Class E
(Buildings within the curtilage) of the GDPO.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an
audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to
accommodate your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Charlotte Dew Senior Development
Management Officer — charlotte.dew@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Page 41 of 72


mailto:charlotte.dew@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

<CPM Plan App greenhouse>

Dear Sirs:

As requested, I am pleased to submit the ohservations of Chesterton Parish
Meeting (°CPM’) on Planning application 24/00694/FUL, relating to the
retrospective erection of a dome-shaped greenhouse in a former orchard.

Flanning Applications relating to this site are of such recent date that it
remains a ‘controversial’ site, and any additional proposals are ‘sensitive’ to
neighbouring householders.

The location for this ‘experiment’ is in the relative isolation of a large area
of land (05 Field Wo7916), which appears to have been used as an orchard for at
least 156 years, hawving become such sometime between 1837 and 1886. The earliest
representation is on the 1886 05 257 sheet (Field Wo 43) showing a distinctly
regular planting regime. It was still an active orchard when described in the
Huntly Estate sale catalogue of 1913. At some point after the 1939745 HWar the
site became overgrown, although still owned by members of the local agricultural
community.

We are bewildered....totally bewildered. Why would a dome-shaped structure,
purparting to be a greenhouse, be erected in isolation in an overgrown orchard 7
It has no resemblance to any practical greenhouse, unless tall plants are 2rown
in the middle and stunted ones at the side (but ewven they made need semi-circular
bamboo canes, or artificial growing frames with a similar profile). HWe could,
nevertheless, see the dome as a summerhouse, but the location is still
unsuitable.

Surely there must be an unwarranted impact on the trees and nature conserwvation,
despite the relatively small size of the structure. Ultra-modern materials look
out of place in this woodland environment.

Details of this Application hawve heen submitted to members of our Standing
Committee and the matter was discussed at a recent Parish Meeting. He have had
representations made to us by close neighbours. Nevertheless, whilst we expect to
find a “greenhouse” in an “orchard” in a Yictorian scenario, this is none suchs;
instead we find it an incompatible location for such a structure. He therefore
submit the foregoing ohservations and have agreed to recommend ‘refusal’.

MB: Location statement. Ae have previously remarked on this before. The location
no longer has any connection whatsoever to the Abbots House in Friory Gardens. 5o
to continue the artificial connection by the words “house north of the bbots
House™ 1s wholly misleading. He expect that the elite residence at the southern
end of the orchard site will be numbered as “No 6A Oundle Foad”, and we think is
4 mare approprliate way of referencing polat.

Page 42 of 72



Yours sincerely

Clerk, Chesterton Parish Meeting.

Page 43 of 72



N\

Q

(]

hd

s

e

=

o

(@

d

!
QL
E<
03
gm N
85 €
c N =
Zé o8
w @35
cX 23
Qec =7
mO__%
Q= 2 g
R
o="7
> Q
eP%
Q<




s1ooulIbud
buip|inqg jo
uoljelnosse
palayieyd

| aged

~ 9snoH sjoqqy

"PasIAdL Saul| anjg pue pay +TOT 190 '° AN
PSpPE SUOISUSI(] “HTOT AUN[ Y ARY
€100/UONBIOL/SSO/HZOZ/VAS ON BuIme(]

\
- NERIOG TV 18 00O ©1 | SA[8IS
PZ0T 2unf e
NOILLDNULSNOD dddNN = \

NV71d NOLIYDOT : 2Ll Suimeic]

HOVEVD ANV dSNOH d4LNISNOD

YSNo10gI1ad “UOMAISAY) SUIpIRL) AI0LL{ ASNOH S104q Y JO YUON pue’]

Page 45 of 72

esjoued ajeuoqeakjod eapd pue
AUITL) WNIUIWN|R © Wolj
apew nojod ur £313 ‘awop asnoy UAaIF 19)aW ¢ X JajaWeIp 11w p pasodod g

u_:.ouguo.._v:@mv_‘u! oL
Ld6 014d s

‘peoy] OH AudyDAemy 1001 ¢
SI12UIsuy BuIp[ing paiduey)
SORID0SS Y DNDI(] Uyof

= A..,



sioaulbua
Buipjing jo
UOI1RIDOSSE
paJayeyd

9SNOH Ssjoqqy

100/3D0TH/SS9/4T0T/V AT ON Fuimely
neapod TV 1T 0001 01 [ So[uog
bZ0T ¥A90100 21rd

QU

NVTd D014 * oL Furaeaq

43N010q103ad ‘UOLIASAY) SUSPIED) KIOLLJ SO} SI0GQY JO YLION puer]

¢ jesaued aeuoqeasjod 1eapd pue
JUWEL] WINIUIWN[E B WO} Ipewl 1ojod ut L2153 ‘awop asnoy usaif 19jaw ¢'7 X 191werp 1219w  pasodog

x:.cu.-ou.__v:@mv._.;v._.
Ld6 01dd SoU

‘PROY IOH ALYD'ARA JODIA ‘¢
s12aursuyg Supjing paiajey)
SJRID0SS Y AIYDI(] UYof

Page 46 of 72

wey

NOILLDMNYLSNOD d3AdNN
e SRRSO ANOd A9SOdO¥d




HSNYNd | ‘2oz/LLiel PAYD
SNOILNTOS -

31JVdS 10I1S1N0 SN v-dod NHOVY leoz/iielL  UMEIQ

9|eos uondlosa aWweN ale( XapUl|

VN 1d44HS d1VNOGHVOA10d

WWO0GC 1HOIdH 431NO0

WWGGee 1HOIdH d3NNI

W00y d413dAVIAd 431N0

WWwiQcoe d313NVIA 3NN

100Qg

NOILISOd d3dN3dO
MIIN dOL

.09

NOILISOd d4d4d
MAIN 1NOHH
000 ¥31L3NVIA ¥31LNO -
0¢6€ Y313NVIA Y3INNI T cy

\?- - b \ W/ )
| 1 =\
£ Db |y
/<

DN
WY q
U\ ™~

GG LHOIdH ddNNI
00S¢ 1HOIdH d31.N0O

NOILISOd d3S0O10

JOO

MIIN dOL

MJIN LNOd4

OlL1SOd V40S

0007 dd41dANVIA 441NO0

0¢6¢ J41dNVIA SdNNI

L T 4 1
"\

GGec LHOIdH ddINNI
00G¢ 1HOIdH d31.N0O




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3c

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE 18™ NOVEMBER 2024

Case No:  24/00021/FUL

Proposal: RETROSPECTIVE CONVERSION OF EXISTING
WAREHOUSE INTO AN ANCILLARY MEAT PACKING
FACILITY AND ASSOCIATED WORKS

Location: 16 LATHAM ROAD, HUNTINGDON

Applicant: MR PAUL GILMAN

Grid Ref: 523351 273555

Date of Registration: 5" JANUARY 2024

Parish: HUNTINGDON

RECOMMENDATION -APPROVE

This application is referred to the Development Management
Committee (DMC) in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation as
the Officer recommendation of approval is contrary to that of the
Town Council.

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This application seeks approval for the conversion of an existing
warehouse into an ancillary meat packing facility and associated
works at No. 16 Latham Road, Huntingdon. This application is
retrospective with works having been completed in November
2019. The Hilton Foods production facility occupies several units
within the Stukeley Meadows Industrial Estate which lies to the
north side of Huntingdon.

1.2  The Planning Statement submitted with this application states that
as Hilton have developed their business, ancillary equipment,
welfare facilities, mechanical and electrical plant and storage
facilities have been added around the building. The Company
operates from the site as a meat food processor, the interior of the
building has been converted over time from commercial
warehouse to meat packaging with associated plant located to the
rear of the building in order to maintain strict temperature controls
within the building.

1.3  The alterations to the building are as follows:-

South (rear) Elevation — addition of fire escape and associated
plant and controls mounted on a 40 ft container with a bank of 10x

Page 49 of 72



1.4

1.5

1.6

2.1

2.2

2.3

condensing units (with 20 individual fans operating in pairs). An
additional acoustic enclosure raised off the ground above the
existing container to a finishing height of 8.6m is proposed to be
constructed around the existing plant consisting of acoustic panels
to match the existing goosewing grey cladding.

West Elevation — addition of a 40ft storage container, painted
green

North (front) Elevation — single storey grey Portacabin 120m2
used as canteen and rest facility for production staff and two
mechanical and electrical 40ft containers (blue).

The site is located within the Established Employment Area (Policy
LP18 of the adopted Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036) of
Stukeley Meadows Industrial Estate and is within the Huntingdon
Neighbourhood Plan 2018-2026 catchment area.

This is a revised application following the withdrawal of the
previous planning application (ref: 23/00982/FUL) and has been
accompanied by a Noise Mitigation Strategy and the addition of
an acoustic enclosure which has been amended during the course
of the application in an attempt to address concerns.

Officers have scrutinised the plans and have familiarised
themselves with the site and surrounding area.

NATIONAL GUIDANCE

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF 2023) sets out
the three objectives - economic, social and environmental - of the
planning system to contribute to the achievement of sustainable
development. The NPPF 2023 at paragraph 10 provides as
follows: 'So that sustainable development is pursued in a positive
way, at the heart of the Framework is a presumption in favour of
sustainable development (paragraph 11).'

The NPPF 2023 sets out the Government's planning policies for
(amongst other things):
e delivering a sufficient supply of homes;
e building a strong, competitive economy;
e achieving well-designed, beautiful and safe places;
e conserving and enhancing the natural, built and historic
environment

Planning Practice Guidance and the National Design Guide 2021
are also relevant and material considerations.

For full details visit the government website National Guidance

Page 50 of 72


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government

3. PLANNING POLICIES

3.1 Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 (Adopted 15th May 2019)

LP1: Amount of Development

LP2: Strategy for Development

LP4: Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery
LP5: Flood Risk

LP6: Waste Water Management

LP7: Spatial Planning Areas

LP11: Design Context

LP12: Design Implementation

LP14: Amenity

LP15: Surface Water

LP16: Sustainable Travel

LP17: Parking Provision and Vehicle Movement
LP18: Established Employment Areas

LP30: Biodiversity and Geodiversity

LP31: Trees, Woodland, Hedges and Hedgerows

3.2  Huntingdon Neighbourhood Plan 2018-2026 - adopted
September 2019

E1- Opportunities for Employment

E2 — Business Investment

NE3 — Setting of Huntingdon

BE1 — Design and Landscaping

BE2 — Local Distinctiveness and Aesthetics
TT1 — Sustainable Transport

3.3  Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) and Guidance:

Huntingdonshire Design Guide Supplementary Planning
Document (2017)

Developer Contributions SPD (2011)

Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape SPD (2022)
Huntingdonshire Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (2017)
Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD (2017)
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste
Local Plan (2021)

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

3.3  The National Design Guide (2021):

C1 - Understand and relate well to the site, its local and
wider context

|1 - Respond to existing local character and identity

12 - Well-designed, high quality and attractive

B2 - Appropriate building types and forms

Page 51 of 72


https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

e M3 - Well-considered parking, servicing and utilities
infrastructure for all users

e N3 - Support rich and varied biodiversity

e H1 - Healthy, comfortable and safe internal and external
environment

e H2 - Well-related to external amenity and public spaces

e H3 - Attention to detail: storage, waste, servicing and
utilities.

For full details visit the government website

PLANNING HISTORY

23/00982/FUL - Retrospective conversion of existing warehouse
into an ancillary meat packing facility and associated works —
Withdrawn.

CONSULTATIONS

Huntingdon Town Council (26.03.24) - Ordinarily Huntingdon
Town Council would support a development in line with policy E1
from the Huntingdon Neighbourhood Plan. However, there are
issues with the retrospective nature of the planning application and
the noise mitigation should be better. Express concern about the
location of the equipment and feel that any placement of this
equipment should be in line with the report from Environmental
Health.

Huntingdon Town Council (23.09.24) - No objections to the
application.

Huntingdon Town Council (09.10.24) - objects due to loss of
amenity; Neighbourhood Plan E1, NE3 and Huntingdonshire Local
Plan LP14 — Amenity.

Cadent Gas — No objections in principle. Any pipeline in the vicinity
of the works area need to be protected at all times. This has
easement in place with BPD distances which must not be
encroached upon crossed over or nothing to be built on or
placed/stored on or over the pipeline in or on top of the mains or
easements for all assets in the works area. Request informative
on decision notice.

Cambridgeshire Count Council’'s Highway Authority — No
objections to the proposal. The traffic generated by that proposed
is the same. Given there is no change in movements there are no
issues with the proposal and no significant adverse impact upon
the Public Highway should result from the proposal.

Huntingdonshire District Council’s Environmental Protection Team
(15.04.24) — Initially objected to the proposal. The Noise Mitigation
Strategy (dated 4th March 2024) indicates that the proposed 7.9m

Page 52 of 72



6.1

high screening will not be sufficient to ensure acceptable sound
levels at the adjacent property, and that further mitigation is
required. The report concludes that additional attenuation
measures are currently under investigation by the design team
and these will be reviewed by the acoustic consultants. With the
information we currently have, noise levels from the site are
considered unacceptable and likely to cause a significant adverse
impact on the use of the adjacent building.

Huntingdonshire District Council’s Environmental Protection Team
(12.09.24) — Following receipt of an updated Noise Mitigation
Strategy (dated 22nd August 2024) and amended plans it is
considered there are insufficient grounds for refusal. The
predicted sound levels from the plant, once mitigated are likely to
be acceptable and should not give rise to significant adverse
impacts on health and quality of life in a workplace. Request a
noise impact assessment be completed within 3 months of the
works being completed to demonstrate that the sound levels from
the plant meet the internal guideline sound levels. Also
recommend a condition to ensure that the works proposed within
the Clover Noise Mitigation Strategy, dated 22/08/2024 are
completed within a specified timeframe from the date of
permission.

Officer Note —Given the length of the comments received, the
consultation response above is summarised. However, the
content of the consultee comments will be discussed in detail
within the Summary of Issues section of the report.

REPRESENTATIONS

Three letters of objection were received during the course of the
application on behalf of Huntingdon Business Centre raising a
number of concerns regarding noise and loss of light impacts.

These can be summarised as follows:-
(10th April 2024) —

. Huntingdon business Centre is significantly affected by the
noise from the plant equipment which operates 365 days a
year, 24 hours a day.

. The Noise Mitigation Strategy by Clover Acoustics (dated
7th March 2024) includes a 7.9m acoustic screen to attempt
to address the adverse noise impact. However, the
mitigation measures set out would still result in noise levels
in excess of the lower and upper guideline levels within the
Huntingdon Business Centre office space.

. Further enhancements are required to fully assess the
package of mitigation measures robustly.

. Loss of light to the office windows at Huntingdon Business
Centre.

Page 53 of 72



(6th August 2024) — The Applicant has still not submitted a robust
Noise Mitigation Strategy to mitigate against the noise harm to the
Huntingdon Business Centre, which includes insufficient
supporting data and reporting errors. Moreover, the latest Noise
Mitigation Strategy (dated 31st July 2024) outlines that acceptable
noise levels can only be achieved inside the HDC offices when the
windows are shut - under no obligation to keep windows closed
permanently.

(6th September 2024) - The latest objection was also supported
by a technical Note by Spectrum Acoustic Consultants which
assessed the updated Noise Mitigation Strategy (NMS) (dated
22nd August 2024). The key points from Spectrum’s Technical
Note are summarised as follows:-

. Clover Acoustics have significantly underestimated the
noise levels generated by the plant equipment by
approximately 12dB. Due to the underestimation of the
equipment's sound power levels, the proposed mitigation
measures would not be capable of reducing noise from the
plant to an acceptable level.

. Clover Acoustics report references that noise criteria are
without a specific character, i.e. anonymous noise. The
noise emanating from the plant cannot be described as
anonymous, as it has a distinctive character. The Spectrum
Technical note concludes that the noise levels are “hugely
significant noise impact present according to BS
4142:2014+A1:2019, even with the proposed mitigation
measures in place.”

. The Clover Acoustic report concludes that “with windows
open the predicted internal levels would be in excess of the
BS8233 guideline internal noise criteria.” It is unacceptable
to require that the windows at the Huntingdon Business
Centre be permanently closed. Our clients are also under
no obligation to upgrade the fagade of the building in order
to improve its sound insulation performance.

. The number of iterations to the noise mitigation strategy
reinforces Spectrum’s view that it is physically impossible
to achieve acceptable internal noise levels at the
Huntingdon Business Centre due to the close proximity of
the plant equipment and the extremely high noise levels it
generates.

(19th September 2024 ) —
The proposed mitigation solution requires third-party land
(in the form of their windows being shut at all times) to
achieve a suitable solution - query whether this would be
lawful-?

. The offices at HBC do not have mechanical
ventilation/trickle vents and therefore the office windows
need to be regularly opened to ventilate and cool the

Page 54 of 72



internal spaces. Consequently, keeping the windows
closed is not an option.

. The external chiller equipment is circa 4m from the windows
and operates continuously.
. Due to the proximity and significant sound power levels of

the plant, no amount of mitigation would be capable of
reducing noise from the plant to an acceptable level. The
plant should be relocated to avoid any doubts.

Huntingdon Business Centre has also made the following

comments in addition to those above:-

. Reference to an application at 7 Percy Road
(20/01671/FUL) and the noise condition associated with
this approval.

. The latest NMS again ignores the effect the noise has on
the external amenity area provided for HBC tenants.
. There is no reference in the latest NMS Report to the

possible impact on ‘loss of daylight’ to HBC’s offices from
the proposed new height of the enclosure.

. Huntingdon Business Centre has now incurred three
consecutive years of lost revenue as a result of a.) the
prospective applicant’s decision to move forward without
planning permission and
b.) the prolonged planning process.

Officer Note — with regard to the noise condition associated with
20/01671/FUL, each application is determined based upon it's
own merits and any information submitted in support of the
application is considered, including Noise Impact Assessments.
The condition referred to was based upon recommended limits
proposed by the applicants noise consultant and was considered
appropriate and reasonable in that particular case.

A further representation from Legal Advisors to Huntingdon
Business Centre was received on 27" September 2024 making
the following points:-

There are serious doubts over whether any reasonable mitigation
between the parties could be effective in securing an acceptable
standard of environment. The Applicant’s noise mitigation solution
relies on our client’s windows being closed at all times to achieve
a suitable solution. The Court in Cemex (UK Operations) Ltd v
Richmondshire District & Anor [2018] where the mitigation
included the closing of windows held that the Council failed to have
proper regard to the PPG.

A suitable noise mitigation solution is unlikely feasible given the
proximity of the plant equipment to the office unit as confirmed by
our client’s noise consultant.

Officer Response — this application relates to 4 windows on the
northern facade of the Business Centre building. These 4

Page 55 of 72



71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

windows are not required to be shut at all times, workers can open
the windows, however the internal guideline sound levels are more
likely to be breached with the windows open.

The Cemex case that is referenced appear to be commercial noise
impact on a residential property — not industrial to commercial as
is the case here.

ASSESSMENT

When determining planning applications, it is necessary to
establish what weight should be given to each plan’s policies in
order to come to a decision. The following legislation, government
policy and guidance outline how this should be done.

As set out within the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
(Section 38(6)) and the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(Section 70(2)) in dealing with planning applications the Local
Planning Authority shall have regard to have provisions of the
development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any
other material considerations. This is reiterated within paragraph
47 of the NPPF (2023). The development plan is defined in
Section 38(3)(b) of the 2004 Act as “the development plan
documents (taken as a whole) that have been adopted or
approved in that area”.

In Huntingdonshire the Development Plan (relevant to this

applications) consists of:

e Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 (2019)

e Huntingdon Neighbourhood Plan (2019)

e Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Minerals and Waste Local
Plan (2021)

The statutory term ‘material considerations’ has been broadly
construed to include any consideration relevant in the
circumstances which bears on the use or development of the land:
Cala Homes (South) Ltd v Secretary of State for Communities and
Local Government & Anor [2011] EWHC 97 (Admin); [2011] 1 P.
& C.R. 22, per Lindblom J. Whilst accepting that the NPPF does
not change the statutory status of the Development Plan,
paragraph 2 confirms that it is a material consideration and
significant weight is given to this in determining applications.

The main issues to consider in the determination of this application
are:

e Principle of Development

e Design, Visual Amenity and Impact Upon the Character of

the Area

¢ Residential/ Other Amenity and Noise

e Highway Safety, Access and parking provision

¢ Flood Risk and Surface Water

Page 56 of 72



Principle of Development

7.6

7.7

The site is located within a built-up area of Huntingdon, which the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan identifies as a Spatial Planning Area.
The site is also located within an Existing Employment Area. As
such, Policies LP7 and LP18 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan
are relevant.

Given the proposal involves alterations to an existing industrial use
within an Established Employment Area, the principle of
development is considered to be acceptable, subject to all other
planning matters being addressed.

Design, Visual Amenity and Impact Upon the Character of the Area

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.1

Policy LP11 of the Local Plan states that a proposal will be
supported where it is demonstrated that it responds positively to
its context. Policy LP12 states that new development will be
expected to be well designed and that a proposal will be supported
where it can be demonstrated that it contributes positively to the
area's character and identity and successfully integrates with
adjoining buildings and landscape. This is also reflected in
Policies NE3, BE1 and BE2 of the Huntingdon Neighbourhood
Plan, the Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPD and Section 12 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

The proposal involves various external alterations including
ancillary equipment, mechanical and electrical plant and storage
facilities around the building which have already been installed.
This application also proposes the addition of an acoustic
enclosure to be added around the plant on the southern elevation.
It will be elevated above the existing container and enclose a 12m
wide attenuator. The acoustic screen will be raised 2.6m above
ground level, finishing at a height of 8.65m, slightly above the
existing eaves height of the building and will be goosewing grey to
match the existing cladding.

Given the industrial nature of the immediate surroundings, the
proposed alterations are considered to be consistent with the
character and appearance of the area and are considered to be
acceptable in terms of design and visual amenity. The various
containers are considered to be acceptable as they are discreetly
located around the building. The proposed acoustic enclosure is
also considered to be of an acceptable design that would match
the existing cladding colour and would not be visually prominent
on the building. As such, the proposal would not result in any
detrimental impacts upon the streetscene of Latham Road or the
surrounding area.

Overall, the proposal is considered to be in accordance with
Policies LP11 and LP12 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036,

Page 57 of 72



Policies NE3, BE1 and BE2 of the Huntingdon Neighbourhood
Plan, the Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPD and Section 12 of
the National Planning Policy Framework in this regard.

Residential/ Other Amenity and Noise

712

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

Policy LP14 of the Local Plan to 2036 states a proposal will be
supported where a high standard of amenity is provided for all
users and occupiers of the proposed development and maintained
for users and occupiers of neighbouring land and buildings.

Paragraph 193 of the NPPF states that ‘Planning policies and
decisions should ensure that new development can be integrated
effectively with existing businesses and community facilities (such
as places of worship, pubs, music venues and sports clubs).
Existing businesses and facilities should not have unreasonable
restrictions placed on them as a result of development permitted
after they were established. Where the operation of an existing
business or community facility could have a significant adverse
effect on new development (including changes of use) in its
vicinity, the applicant (or ‘agent of change’) should be required to
provide suitable mitigation before the development has been
completed.’

It is worth noting that given the sites location within the Stukeley
Meadows Industrial Estate, the proposal would not result in any
impacts on any residential dwellings. However, policy LP14 does
not just refer to residential neighbours but to all neighbouring users
as well as future occupiers of the site itself.

The closest neighbouring property that is most likely to be
impacted upon as a result of the proposed development is
Huntingdon Business Centre, 14-16 Blackstone Road which
contains offices and warehousing and is located approximately
1.8m from the southern boundary of the site. This property has
raised a number of objections to the application and has also
submitted a technical note produced by Spectrum Acoustic
Consultants.

Following the withdrawal of planning permission (23/00982/FUL),
this application has been accompanied by a Noise Mitigation
Strategy, produced by Clover Acoustics, which has been
amended during the course of this application following concerns
raised by the Council’s Environmental Protection Team and the
neighbouring site.

The most recent Noise Mitigation Strategy (dated 22nd August
2024) reviews the external chillers installed on the south elevation
of the building adjacent to Huntingdon Business Centre. The
report models the noise for the attenuator elements of the proposal

Page 58 of 72



7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

to predict the external noise levels. An internal noise prediction
within the adjacent offices has also been carried out and
compared against the guideline office criteria from BS8233:2014.
The proposed mitigation scheme is predicted to offer an overall
sound reduction of -21dB. Therefore it concludes that with
windows closed the internal noise criteria is likely to be achieved.
With windows open the predicted internal levels would be in
excess of the BS8233 guideline internal noise criteria.

The Councils Environmental Health Officer has visited the site and
considers that this is an unusual case as it is usual to consider
noise impact on residential amenity, whereas in this case the
consideration is on the impact on offices located on an industrial
estate. Currently the sound levels exceed those that would be
considered acceptable under the planning regime and mitigation
measures are therefore required to bring the sound levels to a
more acceptable level.

Sound power levels of the unit have been provided and these are
in line with monitoring completed by WBM and Clover Acoustics
on behalf of the applicant. Huntingdon Business Centre, located
adjacent to Hilton Foods have also employed an acoustic
consultant (Spectrum Acoustics) who attended the site in July
2024 and gained a measurement of 85dB(A) at 1m from the
fagade of their building. This is 6dB higher than the level modelled
and predicted by Clover Acoustics utilising the onsite
measurements and the provided sound power levels. The figure
of 85dB(A) will include reflections and potential weather impacts,
therefore there is a level of uncertainty with the proposed 104dB
sound power level modelled by Spectrum (12dB higher than the
manufacturers information).

The proposed attenuation is predicted to provide a reduction in
sound levels of 21dB. This results in an external level at the
nearest receptor of 58dB(A) according to Clover or 70dB(A)
according to Spectrum (however this figure appears incorrect as
85dB — 21dB would result in 64dB — this was queried with
Spectrum).

Window attenuation is predicted to be 23dB if using the modelled
external figure of 79dB(A) and the worst case measured internal
figure of 56dB(A). Window attenuation could potentially be higher
if using Spectrum’s external figure of 85dB(A), or internally
measured sound levels on the first floor with windows closed (as
per WBM’s measurements in 2022).

Using the lower window attenuation figure as worst case, internal
sound levels are likely to be in the range of 35dB(A) if external
sound levels are 58dB(A) or 41dB(A) if external levels are 64dB(A)
(Clover and Spectrums predicted levels respectively).

Page 59 of 72



7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

7.27

In line with BS8233 guidance, the target internal sound levels are
therefore likely to be met with the windows closed — however, the
guideline sound levels may be breached when windows are open.
There is a balance between the competing demands of closed
windows to mitigate external noise ingress into offices, and of
open windows to provide reasonable ventilation / thermal
conditions. The points that have been considered in this case are
the location and surrounding land use, as well as the direction of
the most impacted windows (located on the northern facade,
therefore unlikely to have significant solar gains), availability of
windows on quieter facades, overall sensitivity of the receptor, and
the expectation of being able to open windows and meet internal
guidelines.

A relaxation of the guideline levels during periods when windows
are open is considered reasonable in the case of naturally
ventilated buildings or where the occupants of a commercial
building have the option of opening windows for occasional
periods, especially on an industrial estate such as this where there
is an expectation of noise. Taking these factors into account it is
not considered unreasonable in an industrial setting to have
periods where workers are exposed to higher levels of noise
(above the recommended guidelines) if they wish to have windows
open to prevent overheating, as there should be a reasonable
expectation of some noise in this location. The point raised by
Spectrum Acoustics about the anonymous nature of noise is
noted, however in BS8233 this appears to be given more
weighting for residential premises.

Using a -13dB reduction for windows partially open this would
result in levels internally in the region of 45dB(A) or 51dB(A) if
using the higher level of 64dB(A) externally predicted by
Spectrum.

It must also be noted that the Mitigation Strategy states that the
applicant has attempted to contact the neighbouring property to
discuss methods of upgrading the sound insulation of the
neighbouring premises which could include upgrading the building
envelope, enhanced double glazing and air conditioning for
thermal comfort to negate the need for opening the windows.
However, to date no agreement has been made.

The adjacent premises has also raised the issue of the impact on
an external amenity area. The Council’'s Environmental Health
Team note that there is no relevant noise guidance for commercial
external amenity areas. Spectrum Acoustics have referred to
BS4142 in the submitted NMS, however within the scope of
BS4142 it specifically stipulates that it's use is to assess the likely
effects of sound on people who might be “inside or outside a
dwelling or premises used for residential purposes upon which

Page 60 of 72



7.28

7.29

7.30

7.31

sound is incident”, therefore it is considered inappropriate for use
in this instance.

Another approach would be to utilise BS8233 and whilst the noise
source is not traffic noise, it is constant, without tonal or
intermittent characteristics. This guidance advises an upper
threshold of 55dB, however it should be highlighted that this is for
residential areas (gardens/patios) and recognises that ‘in higher
noise areas a compromise between elevated noise levels and
other factors, such as the convenience of living in these locations
or making efficient use of land resources to ensure development
needs can be met, might be warranted. In such a situation,
development should be designed to achieve the lowest practicable
levels in these external amenity spaces, but should not be
prohibited’. The predicted sound level of the plant is 58dB(A)
according to Clover and 64dB(A) according to Spectrum. This is
at the receptor building at height and is likely to be lower at ground
level. Due to the location of the external amenity area and the
reasonable expectation of noise on an industrial estate, in close
proximity to the A141, this is considered acceptable for the likely
short duration of exposure.

Based on the information provided, the Council’s Environmental
Health Team have therefore concluded that there are insufficient
grounds for refusal of planning permission in this instance. The
predicted sound levels from the plant, once mitigated via suitably
worded conditions, are likely to be acceptable and should not give
rise to significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life in a
workplace.

A further objection relates to loss of light to the office windows at
Huntingdon Business Centre as a result of the proposed
enclosure. The proposed acoustic enclosure is approximately
2.3m from the side elevation of the neighbouring property at the
closest point. The windows in question are located on the north
elevation of the building and previously looked directly onto a high
belt of trees which formed the boundary prior to the external chiller
unit being installed. Accordingly, due to the orientation of the
windows and the fact that the proposed acoustic screen does not
extend much beyond the eaves heigh of the existing building, the
Local Planning Authority are satisfied that the proposal would not
result in any significantly detrimental impacts on the neighbouring
property.

As such, the proposed development is considered to be in
accordance with Policy LP14 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to
2036, the Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPD and Section 12 of
the National Planning Policy Framework in this regard.

Page 61 of 72



Highway Safety, access and parking provision

7.32

7.33

7.34

Policy LP17 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan states that a
proposal will be supported where is incorporates appropriate
space for vehicle movements, facilitates accessibility for service
and emergency vehicles and incorporates adequate parking for
vehicles and cycles.

The site would be accessed via the existing access arrangements
off Latham Road, an unclassified road subject to a 30mph speed
limit. The proposal does not involve any alterations to the existing
access, off-street car parking or turning facilities. The submitted
Planning Statement confirms that there are no significant
implications regarding traffic movements servicing Hilton’s use of
the building compared to the previous warehouse use.
Accordingly the Local Planning Authority are satisfied that the
proposal does adversely affect highway safety and
Cambridgeshire County Council Highway Authority have no
objections to the proposal.

As such, the proposal is considered to be in accordance with
Policy LP17 of Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036, Policy TT1
of the Huntingdon Neighbourhood Plan and Section 9 of the
National Planning Policy Framework in this regard.

Flood Risk and Surface Water

7.35

7.36

7.37

7.38

National guidance and Policy LP5 of the Local Plan to 2036 seek
to steer new developments to areas at lowest risk of flooding and
advises this should be done through application of the Sequential
Test, and if appropriate the Exceptions Test (as set out in
paragraphs 165-175 of the NPPF (2023).

The application site lies within Flood Zone 1 which means that it
has a low probability of fluvial flooding. The proposal involves
alterations to an existing industrial/warehouse building - which is
classified as 'Less Vulnerable' development. This type of
development is considered to be acceptable in Flood Zone 1 and
accordingly Exception or Sequential Tests are not required.

It is also worth noting that no alterations are proposed to foul
drainage disposal and no external alterations are proposed that
would impact the existing surface water drainage.

Overall, the proposal is considered to be acceptable with regard
to its impact on flood risk and surface water and foul drainage and
therefore accords with Policies LP5 and LP15 of
Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 and Section 14 of the
National Planning Policy Framework in this regard.

Page 62 of 72



Conclusion

7.39

7.40

7.41

As outlined above, all planning applications should be determined
in accordance with the development plan, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

On balance, the proposal supports the expansion of a large scale
commercial use in an established Industrial Estate and whilst the
issues of noise and disturbance to the neighbouring property are
noted, it is considered that the predicted sound levels from the
plant, once mitigated via suitably worded conditions, are likely to
be acceptable and should not give rise to significant adverse
impacts on health and quality of life in a workplace.

The proposed development is therefore considered to be
compliant with the relevant national and local policy as it is:

*Acceptable in principle
And it:

* |s of an appropriate scale and design;

* Would not have a significantly detrimental impact upon the
amenity of neighbours.

* Would not be detrimental to highway safety in the locality;

* Would not result in an increased risk of flooding in the locality;

* There are no other material planning considerations which lead
to the conclusion that the proposal is unacceptable.

Taking national and local planning policies into account, and
having regard for all relevant material considerations, it is
recommended that planning permission be granted, subject to the
imposition of appropriate conditions.

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to conditions to
include the following:

Approved plans

Materials

Noise Mitigation Strategy

Maintenance scheme

Acoustic Attenuation Measures compliance

Permitted Development - no additional or replacement
plant or machinery

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version
or an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we
will try to accommodate your needs.

Page 63 of 72



From: _ _@huntingdontown.gov.uk>

Sent: 09 October 2024 13:04

To:

Cc:

Subject: RE: 24/00021/FUL - 16 Latham Road, Huntingdon
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

Hi

Huntingdon Town Council objects due to loss of amenity; Neighbourhood Plan E1, NE3 and Huntingdonshire
Local Plan LP14 — Amenity.

Best wishes,

From:_@huntingdonshire.gov.uk>

Sent: 08 October 2024 13:52

To: @huntingdontown.gov.uk>
Cc: @huntingdonshire.gov.uk>

Subject: RE: 24/00021/FUL - 16 Latham Road, Huntingdon

| refer to your recent email. For clarity | would be grateful if you could confirm your position as to whether
Huntingdon Town Council object or do not object giving material planning reasons for your decision.

Kind Regards

On behalf of

From:_@huntingdontown.gov.uk>
Sent: Monday, October 7, 2024 4:17 PM
To:_@huntingdonshire.gov.uk>
Subject: FW: 24/00021/FUL - 16 Latham Road, Huntingdon

Mimecast Attachment Protection has deemed this file to be safe, but always exercise caution when opening files.
i

I've been contacted by Brown and Co over the weekend and someone called ||| I tocay- After
looking into this further this was the comment that should have been submitted regarding this application:

While Huntingdon Town Council will defer to Huntingdonshire District Council's expertise and particularly that of the

Environmental Health Officer, we reiterate our concerns around noise from the chillers. In particular, we do not
think requiring the neighbouring property to keep their windows closed in order to meet acceptable noise levels is

Page é4 of 72



reasonable, and we note the concern expressed by Brown & Co. regarding the outside amenity area that appears
not to have been addressed.

Best wishes,

From:
Sent: 23 September 2024 13:31

To @huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Subject: FW: 24/00021/FUL - 16 Latham Road, Huntingdon

i

—

Huntingdon Town Council has no objections to this planning application.

Best wishes,

From: Huntingdon Town Council <TownCouncil@huntingdontown.gov.uk>
Sent: 20 September 2024 11:50
To: @huntingdontown.gov.uk>
Subject: FW: 24/00021/FUL - 16 Latham Road, Huntingdon

From:_@huntingdonshire.gov.uk>

Sent: 20 September 2024 11:46

To: Huntingdon Town Council <TownCouncil@huntingdontown.gov.uk>
Cc:_@huntingdonshire.gov.uk>
Subject: 24/00021/FUL - 16 Latham Road, Huntingdon

Huntingdon Town Council,

| am writing regarding the above planning application and your comments dated 26th March 2024. | note that at
that time you expressed concern about the location of the equipment and requested that it should be in line with
the report from Environmental Health. Following the subsequent submission of a Noise Mitigation Strategy
Environmental Health have removed their objection to the propoal and | enclose a copy of their latest comments for
your information.

| believe that you have been re-consulted on this application following the submission of the latest Noise Mitigation
Strategy and | would be grateful if you would confirm whether your objection to the application still stands?

Your earliest response would be appreciated so that the application can be progressed.

Kind Regards,

Page 625 of 72



on behalf of [

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient
and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution
or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient
and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution
or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived

Page 66 of 72



Development Management Committee
APpIication Ref: 24/00021/FUL

Scale = 1:1,250
Date Created: 06/11/2024

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024
Ordnance Survey HDC AC0000849958

The Site

Page 67 of 72




YN°00°S}08}UYDIBH ML MMM A\
%N°02°S}08}1YDIBY MU @S0 3
008199 #0910 -I°L

490 9NN "SiueyuoN ‘uoldweyuon
‘U037 ‘19941S 1SOM €9
‘0IpniS 8y

PYT SI3HY2IY MMIN

S1041LIHOYV

2VA

[ ONINNV1d | ZS. .|
20d [ €000] V[ dd[ oo XX IMW[ G965
L d]] czidy __[Ilve  0Szl:l

UD[d UOI[DD0T

subisaq jdoduo))

| SPOO4 UOYIH Py WOUO] 9] 4 Hun

SO4d ONIATING

171Ng SV
NOILDONALSNOD |7 ONINNV
d3dN4L ALMIGISY3S

SNLVIS ONIMYId

osodingd

pasiaay BulequinN Buipling ¥Z0Z IPW ¥ Z0d

anssi§sild  10d

UOISIADY

G98¢£G0001 "Ou 8ouUsaN

‘POAISSal SIYBU IV “1YBUAdOD uMOIDB
D10 ASAINS BDUDUPIO

:S410ON

uopbununy ‘peoy weyle] ‘ebueyotaiu] ay| ‘Spoo- uojji|

~V

HINON
Vo8
524991 06 or oe oz ol = o

| wg

1V7

Ob’oc\/ /’V\,/H

r-I"

OOO

iy

Py
Woyiny 9

O y1un 34un

it NOLTIH

AYM STV 1119s

HLJON

0GCl-| ue|d Uoljeoori

Page 68 of 72



N°027S108}IYOIBYMLU MMM A\
¥N°027S108}IY2IBY MW @10 ]

008199 0910 “I°L @ n_. Q m_ |_| _ _l_ Q W_ <

4D0 9NN ‘SlueyuoN ‘uoidweyuoN
‘U0103 19941S 1S9M €9
e JIWVOS

PYT SI93HYIIY MMIN

_ )OL: 1 39 OL VDS £V ® AIININd ONIMYIA 41 :TLON] — (027 Ol G 0
0 Ve o o] gy JOO UNOJ asodol
¥0d 1C00| V| dd| 00| XX| AMW| G965 _ .. T
EN| 720z 4snBny__ |[LV® 05° L st |
_ 1004 punoI9 pasodoyd . |
_ subiseq jdedouod | |
_ SPOO4 UOJIH 91 Hun _
11INg SV SO3d ONIAIINg
NOILONJLSNOD | ONINNV1d

SNLVIS ONIMYAA

43aN3L ALITIGISV34 >m>> m_m“_.”_._Qm O“_. \AL.@UCjom

asodin R . : I
THATELA et e N KOER L) e 1 R . I 0 5
PR Rt ; [TV
| = I
|
i ;
i INIVINOD 1 OF W
| Tl |
= YANIVLNOD L4 OF R I
I LY L
J 5 _ 9//91
_ i o0 OO HOO @ od
AL m *w 1. ﬁmﬂ O OO 0O 0O B
wooy jupig N g m [ N O |
| N sl o | s
a\V { a7 O 00 00 O 3
Jup|d I 1 i IW_ L
usiul4 9109p.DH | = i B <> O OO OO OO & e
mm 0 U\ N I ] _H_ 0 . _
M%w [ | §
@ ¢4 # 71
7445 o — —

e
o5
A

%
2

ik

%
27

A0
40

5
//, /’/, ,’/
it
A0

(L))
7
{7

i
7

7
%
075,
o

=
— |
| =l
"2INSO|DUS DIJSNODD PBSIASY- Mé@
Uinog ay4 o} Buipling Bupoqybiau 8y} o uolisod SA|oDIPUI- m
"SJUBWIWIOD SIjo1Dads YHIm aul| ul spow sebubyD- 1
L ¥2'80'1T  0d 4 1
“SHUN 8y} BUISIOS PUD USBIDS D1ISNODD By} f . — | 1
Hoddns o} pesupyus aq o} pasodold usaqg soy suwplj [89])S- — e”m S i
*JOO|} IS| WOJ} SHDIS 8SDQ US810S DIISNODY- : ".l m
"IYBl1ay seAna BulisIxa 1o pasinl uaag SpYy Usalds D1JSNODY- . msﬁ
11 $S922D O] 1D} DBpPISBUO|D = |
‘SIUN 8y} PUNOID PBJDS8ID USad SOY ADMY|OM SDIAISS MBU Y-

"DI1I0 WOJ) lIxe i} BulisIxe 8yl JO [9A8] 8y} J0 PesIol siiun-
- ¥202°80'90  €0d

‘pasodoud Jeung 21ISN0DD  pup ASAINS
Buip|iNg palnspaw jsod pasiaal Buimblg : ¥Z20Z 1020 Z0d

[3upld] {30Did]

|

BuluuDId : €202 APW  10d [/ —

UOISIASY

/!

-
N~

G98€G0001 "OuU 82uUarT]
‘PaAISsal sJYbU ||V "1YBUAdOD UMOIDB

D10 ASAINS 82UDUPIO

:S41ON




N"00°S108)IYIRY ML MMM AN V0SS
%N"00°S109]1YIBYMW@)3DIH0 ]

008199 70910 ‘IeL m ._. Q m_ ._._ I Q m <

400 9NN 'slueyuop ‘uolduwieyuon

‘U003 19911S 1S9M €9

‘oIpms 8y L

P17 S108HY2IY MMIN

oz Ol S o}

1SJI{ pasodoid

-
O
O
LL

_ 00L-1 349 OL IV oV © AFINIdd ONIA {d 41 -31ON
| ONINNVId oo || T s |
v0d || €200] V| dd| 00| XX| AMW| G965 _ ...
EN| 720z 4snBny__ |[LV® 0oLl . |
| 100[{ §sii{ pesodold | @ @ @ @ @ @ @
_ subiseq |deduod | 0009 0009 0009 0009 0675 8085
_ SPOO4 UOYIH 9| Hun . | A
! 8995 I — 0619 T T
| N
17Ing SV $O33 ONIATING \ hldd S
NOILDONILISNOD | DONINNV1d \ q S
J3IANTL ALMTIGISV3S @ | IT \ i
SN1IV1S ONIMYdd .
asodind le.o s
m 3 ) M
(s19)207 20Z) Wo0oy 493207 m

G887y

00SS

R

Page 70 of 71 .

NIVIIND 3JdI4 T0HLINOD IMONS "ulwog

Jaurejuo)

™

woly
W3 edl

Y8 NIY L XP4C

d
=
x

11 kemyepy &

11 Aemyiepn
R | ] S ——

e B ey e

@ an <ex =
wooy 3ub|d
© —— @ ‘H d W 4_ | ]
JuDig M /
ysiul{ S400pJDH m HZ
| | rHL H H M
m PIOA oY ooy Bujeol
0] SS929Y Y
PIOA OV AN__
. | NO
f : NETNEL
- — f : £l 1l
— - - IR E ﬂ Sl NIVIMND 3dl4 TOMINOD IMOWS ‘ulwQg “ £
©©)::: | / /]
LI < L “

wzeled 14
wooy |Bo143093

T
=

"2INSO|OUS JIISNOD0 PIBSIADY-

Yinos ey} o} Buip|ing Buuoqybiau 8y} JO UOHIsOd SADDIPUI-
"SJUBWUIWIOD JsIjo1oads Yim aull ul eppbw sebuny)-

: ¥2'80°'lz  ¥0d

‘SHIUN 8yl BuUISIDI pUD US812S DIISNOD0 Byl

poddns o} padoubyus ag o} pasodoid usag sy sauwpl) |981§-
"JOOJ} IS| WU} SHDLS 850g US8IDS DIJSNODY-

‘1ybBloy SeAnS BUISIXS D PasIn Usa( sy USaI0s DIJSNODY-
"11 SS©200 0} JIn} PBPISBUO|D

‘SHIUN 8y} PUNOID PB}08ID UdaQ SPY ADMY DM 8DIAISS MBU Y-
DI WO} XS a1} BullsSIxa 8y} JO |9AS] 8y} b pasIod Sliun-

- ¥20C'80'90 €0d

N
[' N
@

‘pasodoud Jeung 21ISN0DD  pup ASAINS
Buip|ing palnsoaw jsod pasiaal Buimobid @ ¥20Z 1020  20d

=YoJole Ol "91p|d Jpgifip wwg
S Y yym bBuuoojy fospayps )
Apauuay| | plomuon

N,

Buluupid : £20C AOW  10d v
UOISIASY £ H
G98€50001 "ou 8oua2n I |jom jauod payojnsu Adlayoing
‘PaAISsal sJYbU ||V "1YBUAdOD UMOIDB .

D10 ASAINS 82UDUPIO

‘SJopo0) Jano @)
uuoolj pubsibs : Q/T mﬁ : . WOOy 91SDM

:S41ON




Planning Appeal Decisions Since October 2024 Committee

Ref Original Delegated Appeal Costs
No | Appellant Parish Proposal Site Decision or DMC | Determination
23/019 | Mrs Tracey Huntingdon London Plane tree | Apartment 52 Refused Delegated Appeal N/A
78/ Collins L/TPO/201 Anglian Withdrawn
TREE J8Q5ADIKB5000 House
This tree is Ambury Road
considerably South
overgrown in height Huntingdon
and width and heavy PE29 3PD
thick branches
banging against the
windows of flats
o 52/53/32/33 of
o)) Anglian House. We
“(g have a tree surgeon
g who is able to reduce
= the size by removing
() the middle limb.
+23/004 | Mindaugas Hemingford Erection of a solid 18 The Refused Delegated Appeal N/A
™ 35/ | Dabasinska Grey garden block wall on Brambles Dismissed
HHFU S concrete foundation St lves
L (part retrospective) PE27 5NJ
23/024 | Mr Anthony Chesterton Single storey 5A Oundle Refused Delegated Appeal Allowed N/A
65/ Ansell entrance. Two storey Road ~>
HHFU kitchen/living/bedroo Chesterton (E:
L m extension to rear. | Peterborough ®
Loft extension over PE7 3UA S
existing detached El
double garage. )

¥ wal|



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and other Registrable and Non-Registrable Interests
	Filming, Photography and Recording at Council Meetings

	1 MINUTES
	3a Chesterton - 24/01323/FUL
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 18th November 2024
	RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVE
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESMENT
	Other Matters
	Conclusion

	8. RECOMMENDATION – APPROVAL subject to conditions to include the following
	CONTACT OFFICER: Kevin Simpson



	3b Chesterton - 24/00694/FUL
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 18th NOVEMBER 2024
	RECOMMENDATION  -  APPROVE
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	Residential Amenity
	Conclusion

	8. RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to conditions to include the following:
	CONTACT OFFICER:


	Proposed Floor Plan and Elivation.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	3c Huntingdon - 24/00021/FUL
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 18TH NOVEMBER 2024
	RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVE
	This application is referred to the Development Management Committee (DMC) in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation as the Officer recommendation of approval is contrary to that of the Town Council.
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	Principle of Development
	Design, Visual Amenity and Impact Upon the Character of the Area
	Residential/ Other Amenity and Noise
	Highway Safety, access and parking provision
	Flood Risk and Surface Water
	Conclusion

	8. RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to conditions to include the following:


	Location Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	5965_0003



	4 APPEAL DECISIONS



